
Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

1 
 

AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
MONDAY, MAY 2, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA    
 
1. PETITIONS OF CITIZENS 
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING:  RECOMMENDED SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE CHANGES 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of April 18, 2016 Minutes 
B. Tax Releases and Refund 

 
4. CRAVEN AGING PLANNING BOARD FUNDING ALLOCATIONS 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Alfreda Stout, Lead Agency Representative, and 
Georgia Newkirk, Chair 

 
5. CRAVEN COMMUNITY COLLEGE BUDGET PRESENTATION:  Dr. Ray Staats, 

President and Dr. Page Varnell, Vice President for Administration 
 

6. CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION PRESENTATION:  Dr. Lane Mills, 
Superintendent 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 
 

7. FINANCE – APPROVAL OF PUBLIC SCHOOL FUNDING DRAW-DOWN:  Craig 
Warren, Finance Director 

 
8. APPOINTMENTS 

 
9. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 

 
10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 

 
11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

2 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required or Considered: No   

 
 
 
 

PETITIONS OF CITIZENS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive information 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

3 
 

      Presenter: Jason Frederick     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  RECOMMENDED SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
 

A public hearing will be held on May 2nd, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. The purpose of this public 
hearing is to receive public input regarding the proposed changes to the Craven County 
Subdivision Ordinance. Planning Staff will be available to give a brief presentation on 
the proposed changes. Following the public hearing, Planning Staff request the Board to 
consider adoption of the ordinance changes. (See Attachment #2) 

 
 

Board Action:  A unanimous vote is needed to approve the subdivision ordinance 
changes. 
 
A vote that is not unanimous will require a second vote at the next regular meeting. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

4 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. APPROVAL OF APRIL 18, 2016 MINUTES 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the minutes of April 18, 2016 regular session. 
 
B. TAX RELEASES AND REFUND 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the routine tax releases and refund contained in 
Attachment #3.B. 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve the consent agenda. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

5 
 

      Presenters: Alfreda Stout and Georgia Newkirk  
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CRAVEN AGING PLANNING BOARD FUNDING ALLOCATIONS 
 

Alfreda Stout, representative of the Lead Agency (DSS) and Georgia Newkirk, Aging 
Planning Board Chairperson, will present the recommended funding allocations for the 
Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG), as shown in Attachment #4. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  A vote to approve recommended allocations. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

6 
 

      Presenters:  Dr. Ray Staats and Dr. Page Varnell  
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CRAVEN COMMUNITY COLLEGE BUDGET PRESENTATION 
 

Craven Community College President, Dr. Ray Staats, and Vice President for 
Administration, Dr. Page Varnell, will present the proposed FY 2016-2017 budget and 
the funding request for the college to the County. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive request 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Dr. Lane Mills     
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   

 
 
 
 

 
CRAVEN COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET PRESENTATION 

 
Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Lane Mills, will present the proposed Board of Education 
budget for FY 2016-2017 and the schools’ funding request to the County.   

 
 

 
 
Board Action:  Receive request 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

8 
 

      Presenter: Craig Warren     
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
     
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  FINANCE – APPROVAL OF PUBLIC SCHOOL 
FUNDING DRAW – DOWN 

 
Annually the Board of Education and the Board of Commissioners approve a project to 
be submitted to the Department of Public Instruction (DPI) to draw down the lottery 
funds which have been allocated to Craven County.  These funds are used to pay debt 
service.  Craig Warren, Finance Director, will present the application to be submitted to 
DPI requesting the release of $1,200,000 from the Public School Building Capital Fund.   
This draw down was previously approved by the Board of Education. 

 
 
 
Board Action:  A vote to approve the application 
 

  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

9 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
 

A. PENDING 
B. CURRENT 
C. UPCOMING 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Appointments will be effective immediately, unless otherwise 
specified. 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

10 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
 
CRAVEN COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM       
AUTHORIZATION:  NCGS 7B-1406         
MISSION/FUNCTION: To respond to child protection needs before a child is harmed by taking  
action to identify and address gaps or deficiencies in services and resources  through the annual  
report to the County Board of Commissioners, collaboration with community partners,    
promoting public awareness and advocating for action that addresses the child protection needs 
of each county.            
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS: 11-16   TYPE: DSS Director, DSS staff member, law  
      enforcement officer, attorney from DA’s office,  
      executive director of local community action   
      agency, public School superintendent or   
      designee, member of DSS Board, mental health  
      professional, Guardian ad Litem Coordinator,  
      Public Health Director, local    
      health care provider, EMS/firefighter, District  
      Court Judge, Commissioners appointees from  
      other county agencies or community at-large 
  
QUALIFICATIONS:   Stated above. 
LENGTH OF TERMS: As set by respective agencies, position and Commissioners’ 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly; January, April, July, October  
 
Term(s) expiring:  Dawn Gibson (Not seeking reappointment; parent who has lost child 

before the age of 18) 
 
No applications on file.   



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

11 
 

NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE        
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S.131E-115 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Work to maintain the intent of the Nursing Home Patients Bill of  
        Rights within the licensed homes in the County; to promote community 
        involvement and cooperation with domiciliary homes to ensure quality  
        care for the elderly.        
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7-12      Dictated by the number of homes in the county; 
      homes have right to recommend 25% of appointees 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Cannot be employed by or have a relative in a nursing home.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly, beginning in March, third Wednesday, 10:00 a.m.  
      
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
 
Term(s) expiring: Carol Wolfe (Resigned) 
 
No applications on file. 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

12 
 

 
RIVER BEND BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT (EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION) 
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 160A-362 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Serves as a quasi-judicial body; reviews and rules on permitted 
variances 
  
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
1      Resident of River Bend’s ETJ Area 
 
1      Alternate; resident of River Bend’s ETJ Area 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As needed 
 
No applications on file. 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

13 
 

CRAVEN AGING PLANNING BOARD        
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To provide a comprehensive assessment of the needs and opportunities 
associated with older adults; an achievable vision of successful aging. Craven County based 
programs for the support of and investment in older adults and their families, including a system 
of care for high-risk older adults; and policy strategies for maximizing the functional 
independence and quality of life of older adults and their families consonant with their wishes 
and desires. 
 
 Serves as the sole policy formulation board concerning aging programs on behalf of the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners.     
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
 18         Agency - 10     
            Local Government - 3     
            Client/Caregiver - 2     
            Senior Rpresentative - 3     
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Representative of senior population (60+ years of age), client representative (caretaker of an 
older adult, employed by or volunteering for senior service provider) or representative of one of 
the following agencies or government entities: Craven County DSS, Craven County Health, 
Carolina East Medical Center, CARTS, Employment Security Commission, Neuse Center, 
Coastal Community Action, Legal Aid of North Carolina, Senior Tarheel Legislature, Craven 
County Commissioners, Craven County Manager, Council of Governments.    
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Fourth Thursday of every second month, beginning in January, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Craven County Administration Building         
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms Expiring: Joy Hudson (Permanent agency seat; Employment Security Commission  
   “ESC”)* 
 
   Linda LeDrew (Public Representative; does not wish to continue) 
 
Application on file: Carolyn Bland (for Public Representative; Attachment # 8.A.) 
    

* The ESC member has not been attending for some time. The Aging Planning  
Board is in the process of determining if this seat needs to continue or if bylaws 
need amendment. 

 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

14 
 

CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH BOARD         
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 130A-35         
MISSION/FUNCTION: Primary policy making and hearing body for the Craven County Health 
Department, charged with the immediate care and responsibility for promoting and protecting the 
public health in Craven County.          
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
11      A physician, dentist, optometrist, veterinarian,  
           registered nurse, licensed pharmacist, Craven   
           County Commissioner, general public   
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
(See above)      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: 2nd Monday of every month, 12:00 – 1:30 p.m.        
 
COMPENSATION: No  Yes X Specify: $50/meeting  
 
Term(s) expiring:  Dr. Eric Wheelis (Veterinarian; not seeking re-appointment) 
 
No application on file. 
 



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

15 
 

AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE        
AUTHORIZATION: Local Ordinance 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Administer provision of the Craven County Voluntary Agricultural  
District Ordinance and perform other agricultural related tasks or duties assigned by the Craven  
Count Board of Commissioners. 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9      (See qualifications) 
                 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
1) resident of area Township representing; 2) agricultural landowner; 3) actively and directly  
involved in agricultural production on at least 10 acres of farmland 4) special interest,   
experience, or education in agriculture and/or rural land preservation     
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: At the call of the Chairperson        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms expiring:  Jimmy Arthur (Not seeking reappointment) 
 
 
No applications on file. 



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

16 
 

B. CURRENT APPOINTMENTS 
 
EMS (EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES) ADVISORY COUNCIL)   
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws  
MISSION/FUNCTION: Develops and recommends for approval by the Board of Commissioners 
standards of care, procedures and actions which will maintain and improve the quality of 
emergency Medical Services for the residents of Craven County. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
28      County Manager (or representative), County  
      Emergency Services Director, Representative from  
      each Craven County Emergency Medical Services  
      Provider, representative from each authorized First  
      Responder Provider, hospital president (or   
      designee), Craven County Medical Director,  
      physician nominated by Craven County Medical  
      Society, representative from Craven County   
      Communications, representative from Craven  
      County Firemen’s Association, hospital Emergency  
      Room Supervisor, citizen (non-provider affiliated),  
      Community College Dean of Continuing Education, 
      representative nominated by Craven County Law  
      Enforcement Association, representative from naval 
      hospital aboard MCAS Cherry Point, ad hoc   
      members (ECCOG EMS Director, OEMS Regional  
      Coordinator, American Red Cross Director 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
(See above)      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Bi-monthly        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:      
 
 
Term(s) Expiring:    Tim Wetherington (Appointed 2012; will continue) 
      Jonathan Stephens (Appointed 2012; will continue) 
 
No applications on file. 

  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

17 
 

 
LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE      
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws in accordance with Title III of the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act of 1986 and NC Emergency Response Commission Resolution 13 of April 
2004 
 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To perform duties lawfully assigned by the North Carolina Emergency 
Response Commission, including but not limited to developing a chemical hazard/risk analysis, 
providing planning assistance and review of all chemically related emergency response and 
disaster plans upon request, and serving as liaison with local hazardous materials response 
training programs. 
  
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
Not Specified     From recommended agencies: 
      Encee Chemical, Carolina East Medical Center, 
      Weyerhaeuser Company, Health Department, 
      Emergency Services, Cooperative Extension, BSH,  
      City of New Bern Fire and Rescue, Neuse River  
      Foundation, The Sun Journal, Craven Correctional  
      Center, MCAS Cherry Point, American Red Cross,  
      County Commissioner 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Must possess or have ready access to a wide range of expertise relating to the community, 
industrial facilities and transportation, and the mechanics of emergency response and response 
planning.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 1 Year 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Quarterly (February, May, August, November)        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
 
Terms due to expire:    Paul Bryant (Appointed 2011; wishes to continue) 
      Danny Hill (Appointed 2011; wishes to continue) 
      Tamara Jones (Appointed 2011; checking) 
      Timothy Lawrence (Appointed 2011; MCAS*) 
      Rick Weaver (Appointed 2011; MCAS*) 
      Scott Hansen (Appointed 2011; wishes to continue) 
 
*MCAS representatives are continuing. 
 
Applications on file:  
 



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

18 
 

NEW BERN BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT        
AUTHORIZATION: City Ordinance       
MISSION/FUNCTION: To hear and decide appeals from and review of orders, requirements,  
      decisions or determinations made administratively relative to zoning. 
            
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5            
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: The last Monday of each month at 6:30 p.m.         
 
COMPENSATION: No  ;   Yes X Specify: $15 per meeting  
 
 
Expiring term:   John “Pop” Murrell (Appointed 2013; willing to continue 
     serving) 
 
No applications on file. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

19 
 

 
C. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
June 
 
ABC Board:     Chip Chagnon (Appointed 2013) 
      Tony Lee (Appointed 2013) 
      Barbara Whiteman (Appointed 2013) 
 
Social Services Board:   Clayton Gaskins (Appointed 2013) 
 
Fire Tax Commissioner:   Sandra Hammer (Appointed 2014) 
 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council: Jennifer Dacey (Appointed 2013) 
      Dawn Gibson (Appointed 2014) 
      Debbie Hodges (Appointed 2010; Schools) 
      Jan Hood (Appointed 2012; Non-Profit; retired) 

Jean Huryn (Appointed 2010; Substance                               
Abuse) 

      Faye Legacy (Appointed 2014; DSS) 
      Todd Shuart (Appointed 2010; YMCA) 

Toussaint Summers (Appointed 2011; 
N.B.P.D.) 

 
Nursing Home Advisory Committee: Howard Humphreys (Appointed 2013) 
 
Recreation Advisory Board:  Dickie Fairburn (Appointed 2009; two terms) 
      Cathy Frazier (Appointed 2013) 
      Bill Taylor (Appointed 2010; two terms) 
 
Coastal Carolina Airport Authority: Harold Blot (Appointed 2008) 

 
 
 
 
 

  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

20 
 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
       

 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 

 
A. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – NC Hwy 43, Vanceboro (Parcel Number 

1-044-050) 
 
County Attorney, Jim Hicks, will present an offer received by the County in the amount 
of $1,500.00 for the property located at NC Hwy 43, Vanceboro, which was acquired 
through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were foreclosed on were 
$2,286.60.  The current tax value is $4,350.00.  Attachment #9.A. contains copies of the 
offer to purchase, deed, GIS information, and proposed resolution. 
 
Should the County accept this offer, the property will then be advertised for upset bids in 
accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are timely received, 
the County may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 
B. Short-term Lease of Real Property – 1032 Cedar Street, New Bern (Parcel 

Number 8-007-062). 
 
Preservation Management, Inc., the managing entity of the Craven Terrace Public 
Housing Complex, desires to lease the property located at 1032 Cedar Street, New 
Bern, for the purpose of a community garden for the residents of Craven Terrace 
through October 31, 2016.  The property is jointly owned with the City of New Bern. 
 
Should the County agree to the request, it is required to adopt the resolution shown as 
Attachment #9.B.  

 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

21 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 10     
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
  



Agenda Date:      May 2, 2016  
 

22 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 11     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 



CRAVEN COUNTY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE CRAVEN COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 

Notice is hereby given that the Craven County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public 
hearing on Monday, May 2, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at the Craven County Administrative Building, 
Board of Commissioners Room, 406 Craven Street, New Bern, NC, to hear public input 
regarding the proposed changes to the Craven County Subdivision Ordinance. Following the 
public hearing, the Board will consider adoption of the ordinance changes. All citizens are 
encouraged to attend. 

Copies of the proposed ordinance changes are available for public review at the Craven County 
Planning Department, 2828 Neuse Blvd, New Bern, NC during normal business hours and also 
on the County's website, www.cravencountync.gov. The public is encouraged to review the 
proposed changes to the subdivision ordinance. 

For additional information, please contact the Craven County Planning Department at 252/636-
6618. ' 



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

Section 101. Title 

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 

Article I 
Authority 

This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Subdivision Ordinance" 
of the County of Craven, North Carolina. 

Section 102. Purpose 

The purpose of this ordinance is to establish procedures and standards for the 
development and subdivision of land within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
County of Craven; to provide for the orderly growth and development of Craven 
County; for the coordination of streets and highways within proposed 
subdivisions with existing or planned street and highways and with other public 
facilities; for the dedication or reservation of recreation areas serving residents of 
the immediate neighborhood within the subdivision and of rights-of-way or 
easements for street and utility purposes; and for the distribution of population 
and traffic in a manner that will avoid congestion and overcrowding and will 
create conditions essential to public health, safety, and the general welfare. This 
ordinance is designed to further facilitate adequate provision of water, sewerage, 
parks, schools, and playgrounds, and also facilitate the further subdivision of 
larger tracts into smaller parcels of land. 

Section 103. Authority 

This ordinance is hereby adopted under the authority and prov1s1ons of the 
General Statutes of North Carolina, Chapter 153A, Article 18, Part 2. 

Section 104. Jurisdiction 

The regulations contained herein, as provided in N.C.G.S. 153A, Article 18, and 
N.C.G.S. 153A-121 shall govern each and every subdivision of land within 
Craven County outside of the jurisdiction of any incorporated municipality. In the 
event that the jurisdiction of Craven County under the provisions of this 
ordinance overlaps into the extraterritorial jurisdiction of any incorporated 
municipality, Craven County shall not exercise jurisdiction under this ordinance 
unless the owner of the land to be subdivided petitions the governing body of the 
incorporated municipality to surrender jurisdiction to Craven County and that 
body does in fact surrender such jurisdiction and Craven County through its 
Board of County Commissioners adopts a resolution accepting jurisdiction. 



Section 105. Prerequisite to Plat Recordation 

After the effective date of this ordinance, each individual subdivision plat of land 
within the jurisdiction of Craven County shall be approved by the Craven County 
Board of Commissioners after review and recommendation by the Craven 
County Planning Board. 

Section 106. Thoroughfare Plans 

Where a proposed subdivision includes any part of a thoroughfare which has 
been designated as such upon any officially adopted thoroughfare plans of the 
County, whether such plan was adopted by Craven County, the State of North 
Carolina, or any agency or subdivision thereof, such part of such thoroughfare 
shall be platted by the Subdivider in the location shown on the plan and at the 
width specified in this ordinance. 

Section 107. School Sites in Land Use Plan 

If the Craven County Board of Commissioners and Board of Education have 
jointly determined the specific location and size of any school site to be reserved 
and this information appears in a comprehensive land use plan, the Craven 
County Planning Board shall immediately notify the Board of Education whenever 
a plan for a subdivision is submitted which includes all or part of a school site to 
be reserved. The Board of Education shall promptly decide whether it still wishes 
the site to be reserved. If the Board of Education does not wish to preserve the 
site, it shall so notify the Craven County Planning Board. If the Board does wish 
to reserve the site, the subdivision shall not be approved without such 
reservation. The Board of Education shall then have eighteen (18) months 
beginning on the date of final approval of the subdivision within which to acquire 
the site by purchase or by exercise of the power of eminent domain. If the Board 
of Education has not purchased or begun proceedings to condemn the site within 
eighteen (18) months, the Subdivider may treat the land as freed of the 
reservation. 

Section 108. Zoning and Other Plans 

Proposed subdivisions must comply in all respects with the requirements of any 
zoning ordinance in effect in the area to be subdivided, and any other officially 
adopted plans. 

Section 109. Flood Plain Requirements 

The following flood plain requirements shall apply to all preliminary and final 
subdivision plats: 

109.1 All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to 
minimize flood damage. 

2 



109.2 All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities 
such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and 
constructed to minimize flood damage. 

109.3 All subdivision proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to 
reduce exposure to flood hazards. 

109.4 Base flood elevation data shall be provided for subdivision 
proposals and other proposed Development which is greater than 
the lesser of fifty lots or five acres. 

Article II 
Legal Provisions 

Section 201. General Procedure for Plat Approval 

After the effective date of this ordinance, no subdivision plat of land within the 
jurisdiction of the County of Craven shall be filed or recorded until it has been 
submitted to and approved by the Craven County Board of Commissioners as set 
forth in Article I, Section 1 05 of this ordinance, and until this approval is entered 
in writing on the face of the plat by the Chairman of the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners and attested by the clerk to the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners. 

The Register of Deeds shall not file or record a plat of a subdivision of land 
located within the territorial jurisdiction of Craven County that has not been 
approved in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance, nor shall the Clerk 
of Superior Court order or direct the recording of a plat if the recording would be 
in conflict with this ordinance. 

Section 202. Statement By Owner 

The owner of the land shown on a subdivision plat submitted for recording, or his 
authorized agent, shall sign a statement on the plat stating whether or not any 
land shown thereon is within the subdivision-regulation jurisdiction of Craven 
County. 

In the event that a plat is presented to the Register of Deeds for recording 
depicting a division of land, which is not within the subdivision regulation 
jurisdiction of this ordinance, the owner shall specify the reasons for any 
exemption or exception from the provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 203. Effect of Plat Approval on Dedications 

The approval of a plat does not constitute or affect the acceptance by Craven 
County or the public of the dedication of any street or other ground, public utility 
line, or other public facility shown on the plat and shall not be construed to do so. 

3 



Section 204. Penalties for Violation 

294.1 ¥\iter the effective date of this ordinance, any person who, being the 
owner or agent of the ovJner on any land located within the 
territorial jurisdiction of this ordinance, thereafter subdivides ·his 
land in violation· of this. ordinanoe or transfers. or· sells land . by 
reference to, a plat showing a subdivision of the land before the plat 
has been properly approved. under the terms of this ordinance and 
recorded in the offioe of the Craven County Register of Deeds, shall 
be guilty of a misdemeanor. The description by .meets and bounds 
in . the ·instrument of . transferring land shall not e*empt · the 
transaction from this penalty, Vlhether ·or not the description by 
metes and bounds . in the instrument of transfer refers to anY: 
recorded or unrecorded map. Craven County ~hrough its attorney or 
other official designated ·by · the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners may enjoin illegal subdivision, transfer or sale . of 
land by action for injunction. Further, violators of this ordinance 
shall be subjeot, upon conviction, to fine and/-or imprisonment as 
provided by N.C.G.S. 14 4.L 

204.1 Violation of any provision of this Appendix "A" (Subdivisions) shall 
be punishable as set forth in sections 1-11 and 1-12 of the Craven 
County Code of Ordinances, and as may be otherwise allowed by 
this Code or state law 

294.2 !The violation of an:v provision of this ordinance shall subject the 
offender to a civil penaltv in the amount of $500.00. per violation per 
dav to be recovered· bv Graven Count•t. Violators shall be issued a 
v.tritten citation, 'l.'hich must be paid· •tJithin ten (10) ·days. The 
violation . of anv provision of this ordinance shall be deemed· to be 
committed on the date of recordation of an instrument of transfer or 
other document which transfers land in violation of this ordinance.! 

204.2 Reserved 

294.3 !Each day's Hcontinuing violation of this ordinance shall be a 
separate and distinct offense.! 

204.3 Reserved 

294.4 ~Jotv.·ithstanding Subsection 204.1 and 204.2 above, this ordinanc.e 
may be enforced by appropriate equitable remedies issuing from a 
oourt of oompetent jurisdiction.! 

204.4 Reserved 

294.6 ~Jothing in this seotion shall be construed to limit the use of 
remedies available to Craven County and the county may seek to 

4 

{ Comment [JF1]: Strike 

[ Comment [JF2]: Strike 

( Comment [JF3]: Strike 

· ( Comment [JF4]: Strike 



enforce this ordinance by using any one, all, or a combination of 
remedies.! 

204.5 Reserved 

Section 205. Severability 

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the 
part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

Section 206. Variances 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners, upon review and recommendation 
of the Craven County Planning Board, may authorize a variance from these 
regulations when, in its opinion, undue hardship may result from strict 
compliance. In granting any variance, the Board of Commissioners and Planning 
Board shall make the findings required below, taking into account the nature of 
the proposed subdivision, the existing use of land in the vicinity, the number of 
persons to reside or work in the proposed subdivision, and the probable effect of 
the proposed subdivision upon traffic conditions in the vicinity. No variance shall 
be granted unless the Craven County Board of Commissioners, after review and 
recommendation by the Craven County Planning Board, finds: 

a) That (1) there are special circumstances or conditions affecting said 
property such that the strict application of the provisions of this 
ordinance would deprive the applicant of reasonable use of his land, or 
(2) the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right of the petitioner; and, 

b) That the circumstance giving rise to the need for the variance are 
peculiar to the parcel and are not generally characteristic of other 
parcels in the jurisdiction of this ordinance; and, 

c) That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the purpose 
of this ordinance, public health, safety and welfare or injurious to other 
property in the territory in which said property is situated. 

In the event that the Craven County Board of Commissioners grants a variance 
under the provisions of this section, the fact that a variance has been granted 
shall be noted on the final plat together with the date of approval of the variance 
by the Craven County Board of Commissioners. 

Section 207. Amendments 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners may from time to time amend the 
terms of this ordinance but no amendment shall become effective unless it shall 
have been proposed by or shall have been submitted to the Planning Board for 

5 

/( Comment [JF5]: Strike 



review and recommendation. The Planning Board shall have forty-five (45) days 
from the time the proposed amendment is submitted to it within which to submit a 
report within the specified time, it shall be deemed to have recommended 
approval of the amendment. 

No amendment shall be adopted by the Craven County Board of Commissioners 
until they have held a public hearing on the amendment. Notice of the hearing 
shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the Craven County 
area at least once a week for two (2) successive calendar weeks prior to the 
hearing. The initial notice shall appear not more than twenty-five (25) nor less 
than ten (1 0) days prior to the hearing date. In computing the ten (1 0) day period, 
the date of publication is not to be counted, but the date of the hearing shall be 
counted. 

Section 208. Abrogation 

It is not intended that this ordinance repeal, abrogate, annul, impair, or interfere 
with any existing easements, covenants, deed restrictions, agreements, rules, 
regulations, or permits previously adopted or issued pursuant to law. However, 
where this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of this 
ordinance shall govern. 

Section 209. Administration 

Any employee serving in the capacity of Craven County Planner is hereby 
appointed to serve as Subdivision Administrator. 

Article Ill 
Procedure for Review and Approval 

of Subdivision Plats 

Section 301. Plat Shall be Required on Any Subdivision of Land 

A final plat shall be prepared, approved, and recorded pursuant to the provisions 
of this ordinance whenever any subdivision of land takes place. 

Section 302. Approval Prerequisite to Plat Recordation 

No final plat of a subdivision within the jurisdiction of the County of Craven as 
established in Article I, Section 1 04 of this ordinance shall be recorded by the 
Register of Deeds of Craven County until it has been approved by the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners as provided herein. To secure such approval of 
a final plat, the Subdivider shall follow the procedures established in this article. 

Section 303. Procedures for Review of Major and Minor Subdivisions 

6 



All subdivisions shall be considered major subdivisions except those defined as 
minor subdivisions in this section. Major subdivisions shall be reviewed in 
accordance with the procedures in Article Ill, Sections 305 through 308. Minor 
subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance with the provisions of Article Ill, 
Section 304. 

A minor subdivision is defined as one along an existing state maintained or non
improved private street where no guarantees for improvements are involved. 
Either the Subdivider or his authorized agent must appear before the Planning 
Board at the meeting in which the major or minor subdivision plat is being 
considered for preliminary or final approval. If the Subdivider or his authorized 
agent is not present, the Planning Board reserves the right to postpone approval 
of said subdivision plat. 

Section 304. Procedure for Review of Minor Subdivisions 

304.1 Sketch Plan for Minor Subdivisions 

Prior to submission of a final plat, the Subdivider may submit to 
the Subdivision Administrator seven (7) copies of a sketch plan of 
the proposed minor subdivision containing the following 
information: 

a) A sketch vicinity map showing the location of the subdivision in 
relation to neighboring tracts, subdivisions, roads, and 
waterways; 

b) The boundaries of the tract and the portion of the tract to be 
subdivided; 

c) The total acreage to be subdivided; 
d) The existing and proposed uses of land within the subdivision 

and the existing uses of land adjoining it; 
e) The existing street layout, any proposed street layouts and right-

of way width, lot layout and size of lots; 
f) The name, address and telephone number of the owner; 
g) The name, if any, of the proposed subdivision; 
h) Street and lots of adjacent developed or platted properties; 
i) The zoning classification of the tract and of adjacent properties; 
j) A statement from the Craven County Health Department that a 

copy of the sketch plan has been submitted to them, if septic 
tanks or other onsite water or wastewater systems are to be 
used in the subdivision; 

k) The Subdivider shall receive street name approval from the 
County Planning Department in accordance with Craven 
County's Road Naming and Addressing Ordinance. 

7 



At the time of submission of a sketch plan, the owner shall have the 
boundaries of the tract staked. In addition, he shall have met and reviewed 
the county soils mapping with the Craven County Health Department to 
ascertain the type and suitability of the soils for subsurface sewage 
treatment. 

The sketch plan shall be submitted to the Craven County Subdivision 
Administrator at least 15 days prior to the Craven County Planning Board 
meeting at which it will be reviewed. The Subdivision Administrator shall 
review the sketch plan for general compliance with the requirements of 
this ordinance and any applicable zoning ordinance; and shall advise the 
Subdivider or his authorized agent of the regulations pertaining to the 
proposed subdivision and the procedures to be followed in the preparation 
and submission of the final plat. 

304.2 Final Plat for Minor Subdivisions 

Upon approval of any sketch plan by the Craven County Planning Board, 
the Subdivider may proceed with the preparation of the final plat in 
accordance with the requirements of this ordinance. 

The Subdivider shall submit the final plat, so marked, to the Subdivision 
Administrator not less than 15 days prior to the meeting of the Craven 
County Planning Board at which it will be reviewed. 

The final plat shall be prepared by a Registered Land Surveyor currently 
licensed and registered in the State of North Carolina by the North 
Carolina State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and Land 
Surveyors. The final plat shall conform to the provisions for plats, 
subdivisions, and mapping requirements set forth in N.C.G.S. 47-30 and 
the Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in North Carolina. 

Seven (7) copies of the final plat shall be submitted. Material and drawing 
medium for the original shall be in accordance with the Manual of Practice 
for Land Surveying in North Carolina and the requirements of the Craven 
County Register of Deeds. 

The final plat to be recorded shall be a reproducible plat either of original 
ink on polyester film (mylar), or a reproduced drawing, transparent and 
archival and have an outside margin of 0.5". The plat size shall be 18" x 
24" (preferred), or 21" x 30". The scale shall not be less than one ( 1) inch 
equals one hundred (1 00) feet, unless otherwise approved by the 
Subdivision Administrator. Maps may be placed on more than one sheet 
with appropriate match lines. 

~ filing fee of $50.00 or $10.00 per lot, whiehe\'er is greater, is required 
follo't.4ng approval of the final plat.! 
Administrative fees shall be assessed and paid upon submission of the 
applicable map or play for review in accordance with the most current fee 
schedule adopted by the Craven County Board of Commissioners. 

8 

[ Comment [JF6]: delete 



The final plat shall meet the specifications in Section 308. 

The following signed certificates shall appear on all seven (7) copies of the 
minor subdivision final plat: 

a) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication 

I 0Ne) hereby certify that I am (we are) the owner(s) of the property shown 
and described hereon, which is located in the subdivision jurisdiction of 
the County of Craven and that I (we) hereby adopt this plan of subdivision 
pursuant to Article Ill, Section 304, of the Craven County Subdivision 
Ordinance with my (our) free consent and establish minimum Building 
Setback Lines as noted: 

Date Owner(s) 

b) Certificate of Survey and Accuracy 

In accordance with the Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in North 
Carolina: 

On the face of each map prepared for recordation there shall appear a 
certificate acknowledged before an officer authorized to take 
acknowledgements and executed by the person making the survey or map 
including deeds and any recorded data shown thereon. The certificate 
shall include a statement or error of closure calculated by latitudes and 
departures. Any lines on the map which were not actually surveyed must 
be clearly indicated on the map and a statement included in the certificate 
revealing the source of information. 

The certificate shall take the following general form: 

State of North Carolina, County 
I (We), , certify that this map was (drawn 
by me) (drawn under my supervision) from (an actual survey made by me) 
(an actual survey made under my supervision) (deed description recorded 
in Book_, Page_, etc.) (Other); that the ratio of precision as calculated 
by latitudes and departures is 1: (that the boundaries not surveyed 
are shown as broken lines plotted from information found in Book _, 
Page_; that this map was prepared in accordance with N.C.G.S. 47-30, 
as amended. 

Witness my hand and seal this_ day of _____ A.D., 20_ 

Registered Land Surveyor 
Official Seal 

9 



Registration Number 

c) Certificate of Approval from Environmental Health 
c) [Environmental Health Certificate L_ 

Unless specifically remarked in the NOTES section of this plat, the Craven 
County Health Department, based on the information submitted with the 
application, has performed a site evaluation on each lot located within this 
subdivision. This certificate is based on conditions and State regulations 
existing on the date the Improvement Permits were issued and shall 
remain in effect as long as the Improvement Permits are valid. Following 
expiration of Improvement Permits. the Craven County Division of 
Environmental Health may require additional improvements. if necessary, 
in accordance with current site conditions and regulations. This 
certification may be overridden by State and/or Federal Statutes and 
authority .. ~opies of the site evaluations and Improvement Permits for tho 
sO\·l-age collection treatment and disposal systems planned to serve each 
lot are a·roilable for review in the office of the Division of Environmental 
Mealth-.1 Prior to purchasing ANY property, purchasers are advised to 
verify the continuing validity of the Improvement Permit for the lot to be 
purchased. 

Director Date 
Division of Environmental Health 
Craven County Health Department 

frhis certification is· based on conditions and State regulations existing on 
the date of this certification and shall remain in effect for five (5) calendar 
years from the date of the certification.· Follo'Ning m<piration of the five (5) 
year. certification, .. the Craven County Division of Environmental Health 
reserves the right to require additional improvements for these lots if found 
necessary when the improvement permit is requested.· Provided this 
certification may ·be overridden by State and/or Federal . Statutes and 
authority. 

This the day of ,20 .:l 

d) Certificate of Approval by the Planning Board 

The Craven County Planning Board hereby approves the final plat for the 
------------subdivision. 

Date 

Chairman, Planning Board 

10 

{ Comment [JF7]: New Heading 

( Comment [JFS]: delete 

( Comment [JF9]: delete 



e) Certificate of Approval by the Board of County Commissioners 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the final 
plat for the subdivision. 

Date 

Chairman, Craven County 
Board of Commissioners 

f) Disclaimer of Wetlands Determination 

Approval of this subdivision does not address the issue of the existence or 
non-existence of wetlands within the subdivision. The enforcement of 
wetlands regulations under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and 
Section 1 0 of the Rivers and Harbors Act is within the jurisdiction of the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Inquiries concerning wetlands matters 
should be addressed to that agency. 

g) Air Installation Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) Disclosure 

If all or part of a subdivision is determined to lie within an area of Craven 
County that is regulated by the Craven County Marine Corps Air Station 
Zoning Ordinance, a disclosure statement shall appear on the plat in 
accordance with the aforementioned ordinance. 

h) Certificate of Registration by Register of Deeds 

Craven County, North Carolina 

rrhe foregoing certificate of · .. ·· . .· . I a Notary Public of 
County, North Carolina, is certified to be correct.l 

Filed for registration on the _ day of , 20 _, 
at __ (AM ./P.M.) and recorded in Plat Cabinet __ , Slide __ . 

Register of Deeds 

i) Certificate of Local Coastal Area Management Officer 

11 

· ( Comment [JF10]: delete 



This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina Coastal 
Management Act of 197 4 and is not located within any Area of 
Environmental Concern. 

Local Permit Officer 
OR 

This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina Coastal 
Area Management Act of 1974 and a portion(s) or all of the subdivision 
located within any Area of Environmental Concern is duly noted at the 
appropriate location on this plat. 

Local Permit Officer 

j) Department of Transportation 

Division of Highways 

Proposed Public Subdivision Road Minimum Design Standards 
Certification 

Approved ________ _ 
District Engineer 

Date __________ _ 

k) Certificate of Approval of Water Supply System 

If the subdivision is proposed to be served by Craven County water, the 
following certificate shall be affixed to the map: 

I certify that this water supply system installed or proposed for installation 
in this subdivision fully meets the requirements of the North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources, Division of 
Environmental Health Public Water Supply Section and is hereby 
approved as shown. 

Water Superintendent Date 

I) Soil Statement 

The following note shall be added to subdivision plats if deemed 
necessary by the Subdivision Administrator: 

Due to soil characteristics, specially engineered foundations may be 
required. 

12 



m) Airport Disclosure statement 

Residents should be aware that the close proximity to Craven Regional 
Airport creates increased noise levels as well as certain height restrictions 
associated with the overflight of arriving and departing aircraft. Residents 
and potential buyers should consult with airport officials to determine the 
required height restrictions applicable for their particular area. 

The Craven County Planning Board shall review the final plat at or before its next 
regularly scheduled meeting which follows at least fifteen (15) days after the 
Subdivision Administrator receives the final Plan and shall recommend approval, 
conditional approval with modifications to bring the plat into compliance, or 
disapproval of the final plat with reasons in writing within ten (1 0) working days of 
its first consideration of the plat. 

During its review of the final plat, the Craven County Planning Board may appoint 
an engineer or surveyor to confirm the accuracy of the final plat (if agreed to by 
the Craven County Board of Commissioners). If substantial errors are found, the 
costs shall be charged to the Subdivider and the plat shall not be recommended 
for approval until such errors have been corrected. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends approval of the final plat, it 
shall transmit all copies of the plat and its recommendations to the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners through the Subdivision Administrator. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends conditional approval of the 
final plat with modifications to bring the plat into compliance, it shall return its 
written recommendation and two (2) reproducible copies of the plat to the 
Subdivider. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends disapproval of the final plat, it 
shall instruct the Subdivider concerning discrepancies in the plat and provide 
reasons for its disapproval and instructions for resubmission of a revised plat. 
The Subdivider may make such changes as will bring the plat into compliance 
with the provisions of this ordinance and resubmit same for reconsideration by 
the Craven County Planning Board. 

Failure of the Craven County Planning Board to make a written recommendation 
if not approved within ten (1 0) working days after its first review shall constitute 
grounds for the Subdivider to apply to the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners for approval. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends approval or conditional 
approval with modifications to bring the plat into compliance, or the Subdivider 
appeals to the Craven County Board of Commissioners, the Board of 
Commissioners shall review and approve or disapprove the final plat within 
twenty (20) working days after the plat and recommendation of the Planning 
Board has been received by the Subdivision Administrator. 

13 



If the Craven County Board of Commissioners approves the final plat, such 
approval shall be shown on two (2) copies of the plat by the signed certificate in 
Section 304.2(e). 

If the final plat is disapproved by the Craven County Board of Commissioners, 
the reasons for such disapproval shall be stated in writing, specifying the 
provisions of this ordinance with which the final plat does not comply. If the final 
plat is disapproved, the Subdivider may make such changes as will bring the final 
plat into compliance and resubmit it for reconsideration by the Craven County 
Planning Board and Craven County Board of Commissioners. 

The Subdivider shall file the approved final plat with the Register of Deeds of 
Craven County within ninety (90) days of the date the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners gave approval; otherwise such approval shall be null and void. 

304.2 Procedures for Review of Minor 1-Lot Subdivisions 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 105, 201 and 304.2 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance. the approval process for minor subdivisions involving the division of 
one lot into no more than two lots shall be as follows. 

a) The subdivider may submit sketch plans in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 304.1 of the Subdivision Ordinance; 

b) Upon approval of any sketch plan by the Subdivision Administrator, the 
Subdivider may proceed with the preparation of the final plat as set 
forth in Section 304.3 of the Subdivision Ordinance. 

The final plat shall be prepared by a Registered Land Surveyor 
currently licensed and registered in the State of North Carolina by the 
North Carolina State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers 
and Land Surveyors. The final plat shall conform to the provisions for 
plats, subdivisions. and mapping requirements set forth in N.C.G.S. 
47-30 and the Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in North Carolina. 

1 mylar and 7 paper copies of the final plat shall be submitted to the 
Subdivision Administrator. Material and drawing medium for the 
original shall be in accordance with the Manual of Practice for Land 
Surveying in North Carolina and the requirements of the Craven 
County Register of Deeds. 

The final plat to be recorded shall be a reproducible plat either of 
original ink on polyester film (mylar), or a reproduced drawing, 
transparent and archival and have an outside margin of 0.5''. The plat 
size shall be 18" x 24" (preferred), or 21" x 30". The scale shall not be 
less than one (1) inch equals one hundred (1 00) feet, unless otherwise 
approved by the Subdivision Administrator. Maps may be placed on 
more than one sheet with appropriate match lines. 

14 



Administrative fees shall be assessed and paid upon submission of the 
applicable map or plat for review in accordance with the most current 
fee schedule adopted by the Craven County Board of Commissioners. 

The final plat shall be prepared in compliance with Section 308 of the Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

The following signed certificates shall appear on the final minor subdivision plat 

a) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication 

I (We) hereby certify that I am (we are) the owner(s) of the property shown 
and described hereon. which is located in the subdivision jurisdiction of 
the County of Craven and that I (we) hereby adopt this plan of subdivision 
pursuant to Article Ill. Section 307. of the Craven County Subdivision 
Ordinance with my (our) free consent and establish minimum Building 
Setback Lines as noted: 

Date Owner(s) 

b) Certificate of Survey and Accuracy 

In accordance with the Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in North 
Carolina: 

On the face of each map prepared for recordation there shall appear a 
certificate acknowledged before an officer authorized to take 
acknowledgements and executed by the person making the survey or map 
including deeds and any recorded data shown thereon. The certificate 
shall include a statement or error of closure calculated by latitudes and 
departures. Any lines on the map which were not actually surveyed must 
be clearly indicated on the map and a statement included in the certificate 
revealing the source of information. 

The certificate shall take the following general form: 

State of North Carolina. County 
I (We). . certify that this map was (drawn 
by me) (drawn under my supervision) from (an actual survey made by me) 
(an actual survey made under my supervision) (deed description recorded 
in Book . Page . etc.) (Other); that the ratio of precision as calculated 
by latitudes and departures is 1: (that the boundaries not surveyed 
are shown as broken lines plotted from information found in Book , 
Page ); that this map was prepared in accordance with G.S. 47-30. as 
amended. 

15 



Witness my hand and seal this day of A.D .. 20 

Registered Land Surveyor 
Official Seal 

Registration Number 

c) Environmental Health Certificate 

Unless specifically remarked in the NOTES section of this plat the Craven 
County Health Department. based on the information submitted with the 
application. has performed a site evaluation on each lot located within this 
subdivision. This certificate is based on conditions and State regulations 
existing on the date the Improvement Permits were issued and shall 
remain in effect as long as the Improvement Permits are valid. Following 
expiration of Improvement Permits. the Craven County Division of 
Environmental Health may require additional improvements. if necessary. 
in accordance with current site conditions and regulations. This 
certification may be overridden by State and/or Federal Statutes and 
authority. Prior to purchasing ANY property. purchasers are advised to 
verify the continuing validity of the Improvement Permit for the lot to be 
purchased. 

Director Date 
Division of Environmental Health 
Craven County Health Department 

d) Disclaimer of Wetland Determination 

Approval of this Subdivision does not address the issue of the existence or 
non-existence of wetlands within the subdivision. The enforcement of 
wetlands regulations under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and 
Section 1 0 of the Rivers and Harbors Act is within the jurisdiction of the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Inquiries concerning wetlands matters 
should be addressed to that agency. 

e) Air Installation Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) Disclosure 

If all or part of a subdivision is determined to lie within an area of Craven 
County that is regulated by the Craven County Marine Corps Air Station 
Zoning Ordinance. a disclosure statement shall appear on the plat in 
accordance with the aforementioned ordinance. 

f) Certificate of Registration by Register of Deeds 

16 



Craven County. North Carolina 

Filed for registration on the day of .20 
At (A.M./P.M.) and recorded in Plat Cabinet . Slide 

Register of Deeds 

g) Certificate of Local Coastal Area Management Officer 

This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina Coastal 
Management Act of 197 4 and is not located within any Area of 
Environmental Concern. 

Local Permit Officer 

OR 

This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina Coastal 
Area Management Act of 197 4 and a portion(s) or all of the subdivision 
located within any Area of Environmental Concern is duly noted at the 
appropriate location on this plat. 

Local Permit Officer 

h) Department of Transportation 

The following certificate shall be signed by the District Highway 
Engineer upon review and approval of subdivision plat to ensure that 
minimum design standards are met: 

Division of Highways 

Proposed Public Subdivision Road Minimum Design Standards 
Certification 

Approved 
District Engineer 

Date 

i) Certificate of Approval of Water Supply System 

17 



If the subdivision is proposed to be served by Craven County water. the 
following certificate shall be affixed to the map: 

I certify that this water supply system installed or proposed for installation 
in this subdivision fully meets the requirements of the North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. Division of 
Environmental Health Public Water Supply Section and is hereby 
approved as shown. 

Water Superintendent Date 

j) Soil Statement 

The following note shall be added to subdivision plats if deemed 
necessary by the Subdivision Administrator: 

Due to soil characteristics. specially engineered foundations may be 
required. 

k) Airport Disclosure statement 

Residents should be aware that the close proximity to Craven Regional 
Airport creates increased noise levels as well as certain height restrictions 
associated with the overflight of arriving and departing aircraft. Residents 
and potential buyers should consult with airport officials to determine the 
required height restrictions applicable for their particular area. 

The Subdivision Administrator shall approve final plats submitted under Section 
304.3 so long as the final plat complies with the requirements of the Subdivision 
Ordinance and any applicable zoning ordinance; however. prior to such approval. 
a Technical Review Committee composed of the following agencies shall be 
given an opportunity to make recommendations concerning the plat approval: 

a) Division of Environmental Health. Craven County Health 
Department. and District Engineer. North Carolina Department 
of Transportation: 

b) Superintendent of New Bern-Craven County Board of 
Education; 

c) United States Army Corps of Engineers: 
d) Field Consultant of the Office of Coastal Area Management; 
e) United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation 

Service; 
f) Craven County Building Inspector: 
g) Military Base Commander or designee as per NCGS 153A-

323b. if applicable; 
h) Any other agency or official designated by the Craven County 

Board of Commissioners 

18 



In order to be considered in the month submitted, the final plat must be submitted 
to the Subdivision Administrator at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting 
of the Technical Review Committee ("TRC") that occurs in the month of 
submission. The TRC meeting schedule is available on the Craven County 
Planning and Inspections website. Following the TRC meeting at which the final 
plat seeking approval is considered, the Subdivision Administrator shall. within 
fifteen (15) days, either approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the final 
plat. During his/her review of the final plat. the Subdivision Administrator may 
appoint an engineer or surveyor to confirm the accuracy of the final plat (if 
agreed to by the Craven County Board of Commissioners). If substantial errors 
are found, the costs shall be charged to the Subdivider and the plat shall not be 
approved until such errors have been corrected. 

If the Subdivision Administrator conditionally approves the final plat. he/she shall 
provide the Subdivider with written notes identifying the modifications needed to 
bring the plat into compliance with the Subdivision Ordinance. 

If the final plat is disapproved by the Subdivision Administrator, the reasons for 
such disapproval shall be stated in writing, specifying the provisions of this 
ordinance with which the final plat does not comply. If the final plat is 
disapproved, the Subdivider may make such changes as will bring the final plat 
into compliance and resubmit it for reconsideration by the Subdivision 
Administrator. 

Failure of the Subdivision Administrator to approve, conditionally approve, or 
disapprove the final plat within the time set forth above will result in the final plat 
automatically being placed on the next available Planning Board Agenda for 
consideration. 

The Subdivider shall file the approved final plat with the Register of Deeds of 
Craven County within ninety (90) days of the date the Subdivision Administrator 
gave approval; otherwise such approval shall be null and void. 

Section 305. Sketch Plan for Major Subdivisions 

305.1 Number of Copies and Contents 

At the option of the Subdivider, prior to the preliminary plat submission, 
the Subdivider may submit to the Craven County Planning Board seven 
(7) copies of a sketch plan of the proposed subdivision containing the 
following information: 

a) A sketch vicinity map showing the location of the subdivision in relation 
to neighboring tracts, subdivisions, roads, and waterways; 

b) The boundaries of the tract and the portion of the tracts to be 
subdivided; 

c) The total acreage to be subdivided; 

19 



d) The existing and proposed uses of land within the subdivision 
and the existing uses of land adjoining it; 

e) The existing street layout, any proposed street layouts and right-of 
way width, lot layout and size of lots; 

f) The name, address and telephone number of the owner; 

g) The name, if any, of the proposed subdivision; 

j) Street and lots of adjacent developed or platted properties; 

i) The zoning classification of the tract and of adjacent properties; 

j) A statement from the Craven County Health Department that a copy of 
the sketch plan has been submitted to them, if septic tanks or other 
onsite water or wastewater systems are to be used in the subdivision; 

k) The Subdivider shall receive street name approval from the County 
Planning Department in accordance with the Craven County Road 
Naming and Addressing Ordinance. 

Any review of a sketch plan under the provisions of this section shall not 
be construed to be a commitment on the part of the Craven County 
Planning Board or the Craven County Board of Commissioners, but shall 
be for advisory and planning purposes only. 

Section 305.2 Submission and Review Procedure 

The sketch plan shall be submitted at least fifteen (15) days prior to the 
Craven County Planning Board meeting at which it will be reviewed. The 
Craven County Planning Board shall review the sketch plan for general 
compliance with the requirements of this ordinance and any zoning 
ordinance, and shall advise the Subdivider or his authorized agent of the 
regulations pertaining to the proposed subdivision and the procedures to 
be followed in the preparation and submission of the preliminary and final 
plats. 

Section 306. Procedure for Preliminary Plat Submission and Review of 
Major Subdivisions 

306.1 Submission Procedure 

For every subdivision within the territorial jurisdiction established by 
Article I, Section 104, of this ordinance, which does not qualify for 

20 



the minor subdivision procedure as set forth in Article Ill, Section 
303, the Subdivider shall submit a preliminary plat which shall be 
reviewed by the Craven County Planning Board and given final 
approval by the Craven County Board of Commissioners before 
any sale or transfer of any lot within the subdivision and before any 
occupancy or use may be issued by any agency or department of 
Craven County. 

Seven (7) copies of the preliminary plat (as well as any additional 
copies which the Subdivision Administrator determines are needed 
to be sent to other agencies) shall be submitted to the Administrator 
of this ordinance at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Craven 
County Planning Board meeting at which the Subdivider desires the 
Board to review the preliminary plat. 

Preliminary plats shall meet the specifications in Article Ill, Section 
308. 

306.2 Review Procedure 

The Craven County Planning Board shall review the preliminary 
plat at or before its next regularly scheduled meeting which follows 
at least fifteen (15) days after the Subdivision Administrator 
receives the preliminary plat and the comments from the 
appropriate agencies. 

The Craven County Planning Board shall recommend approval, 
conditional approval with recommended changes to bring the plat 
into compliance, or disapproval with reasons in writing within ten 
( 1 0) working days of its first consideration of the plat. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends approval of the 
preliminary plat, it shall retain one (1) copy of the plat for its 
minutes. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends disapproval of 
the preliminary plat, it shall retain one ( 1) copy of the plat for its 
minutes. 

If the Craven County Planning Board does not make a written 
recommendation within ten (1 0) working days after its first 
consideration of the plat, the Subdivider may apply to the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners for approval or disapproval. 

306.3 Review by Other Agencies 

After having received the preliminary plat from the Subdivider, the 
Subdivision Administrator shall conduct a Technical Review 

21 



Committee (TRC) meeting made up of members of various 
agencies including, but not limited to: 

a) Division of Environmental Health, Craven County Health 
Department, and District Engineer, North Carolina Department 
of Transportation, and 

b) Superintendent of New Bern-Craven County Board of 
Education, and 

c) United States Army Corps of Engineers, and 

d) Field Consultant of the Office of Coastal Area Management, and 

e) United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation 
Service, and 

f) Craven County Building Inspector, and 

g) Military Base Commander or designee as per NCGS 153A-
323b. if applicable; 

~)! St.Jch other agencies and officials as the Planning Board may 
deem necessary. 

The Subdivision Administrator may submit copies of the preliminary 
plat and any accompanying materials to agencies and officials 
concerned. 

Section 307. Final Plat Submission and Review 

307.1 Preparation of Final Plat and Installation of Improvements 

Upon approval of the preliminary plat by the Craven County 
Planning Board, the Subdivider may proceed with the preparation 
of the final plat, and the installation of or arrangement for required 
improvements in accordance with the approved preliminary plat and 
the requirements of this ordinance. Prior to approval of the final 
plat, the Subdivider shall have installed the improvements specified 
in this ordinance or guaranteed their installation as provided 
herein. No final plat will be accepted for review by the Craven 
County Planning Board or the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners unless it has been reviewed by the Subdivision 
Administrator and found to be in compliance with the improvement 
and guarantee standards of this ordinance. The final plat shall 
constitute only that portion of the preliminary plat which the 
Subdivider proposes to record and develop at that time; such 
portion shall conform to all requirements of this ordinance. 

The approval of the preliminary plat by the Craven County Planning 
Board shall be effective for a period of twelve (12) months following 
the date of approval. In the event the final plat has not been 

22 

- ( Comment [lfll]: was g, now h 



submitted for approval prior to the expiration of said twelve (12) 
month period, the approval of the preliminary plat shall be null and 
void unless extended by action of the Craven County Planning 
Board at the request of the Developer. 

307.2 Guarantees in Lieu of Completed Improvements 

a) Agreement and Security Required 

In lieu of requiring the completion, installation and dedication of 
all improvements prior to final plat approval, the County of 
Craven may enter into an agreement with the Subdivider 
whereby the Subdivider shall agree to complete all required 
improvements. Once said agreement is signed by both parties 
and the security required herein is provided, the final plat may 
be approved by the Craven County Planning Board, if all other 
requirements of this ordinance are met. To secure this 
agreement, the Subdivider shall provide, subject to the approval 
of the Craven County Board of Commissioners, either one, or a 
combination of the following performance guarantees in the 1aA1 
amount of one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the 
reasonably estimated cost of completion at the time the 
performance guarantee is issued. [no less than 1.26j ~j_fl1QQ _fu_() 
entire cost provided herein.! 

At the time of submission of the performance guarantees 
required herein, the Subdivider shall furnish to the Subdivision 
Administrator a statement by a licensed engineer setting forth 
the estimated cost of completing and installing the 
improvements required under this ordinance. The estimate 
shall include the approximate~ date of compJetion and have th~ 
engine~r's seal affixecj t() it rfhe estifTlateofoostshall take into 
consideration .the current~cost of the improvefTJents as ·.r,:ell as 
the effect of inflation on the cost,~ considering the estifTlated tifTle 

ofcofTlpletion.I_.Th.~ e fina·l·· es .. _t.ima.J~.-~hall. be .. m. u. lti~.lied b~ 1.25 to 
deterrr1ine the amount of the security required. ~ ifTlate of 
cost . shall be updated annually (on the anniversary of tho 
effective date · of said guarantee) in the event that the 
improvements have not been fully corTlpleted.! 

1. Surety Performance Bond(s) 

The Subdivider may~ obtain a performance bond(s) 
from a surety bonding company authorized to do 
business in North Carolina. The bonds shall be payable 
to the County of Craven and shall be in an amount equal 
to 1.25 times the entire cost, as shown on the estimate 
required herein. The bond shall be approved by the 

23 

- ( Comment [JF12]: delete 

-- [ Comment [JF13]: delete 

· [ Comment [JF14]: delete 

~~ ( Comment [JF15]: delete 

{ Comment [JF16]: delete 

( Comment [JF17]: delete 



Craven County Planning Board and the County Attorney. 
The bond shall be conditioned so that the required 
improvements may be constructed by Craven County 
without cost to the County in the event of default by the 
Subdivider. The performance bond must be valid for at 
least one year and be payable to the County upon default 
of the agreement entered into between Subdivider and 
the County as required by Section 307 .2(a) of this 
ordinance. The Subdivider shall renew the performance 
bond for successive one-year terms until the 
performance agreement entered into between Subdivider 
and the County is of no further effect. ~uration of the 
bond(s) shall be until such time as the improvements· are 
accepted by the Craven County Planning Board following 
receipt by said Board of appropriate \Witten releases from 
the agencies herein above specified.!__ ~ -- ~ n d- ~ - ~ 

2. !cash of Equivalent Securit·~ Letter of Credit 

The Subdivider may ~ deposit ~as~, an irrevocable 
letter of credit issued by any financial institution licensed 
to do . business in North . Carolina pr other. instrument 
readily convertible into eash at faee value,. eithe~ with. the 
County pr in escrow 'Jv'ith a financial institution designated 
as an official depository of the County. The . use of any; 
instrument other than eash shan be subject.· to. the 
approval of ·the Graven County Planning Board.! The 
amount of the letter of credit ~ shall be equal to 
1.25 times the cost, as estimated under the requirements 
of this ordinance and approved by the Craven County 
Planning Board, for completing and installing all required 
improvements. The letter of credit must be valid for at 
least one year and be payable to the County at any time 
upon presentation of (i) a sight draft drawn on the issuing 
bank. (ii) an affidavit executed by Craven County stating 
that the Subdivider is in default under the agreement 
entered into with Craven County and (iii) the original 
letter of credit. The Subdivider shall renew the letter of 
credit for successive one-year terms until the 
performance agreement entered into between Subdivider 
and the County is of no further effect. 

3. Other Forms of Equivalent Security 

The Subdivider may furnish the County with other forms 
of performance guarantees that provide equivalent 
security to a surety bond or letter of credit, such as 
escrowing cash or another instrument readily convertible 

24 

~ ( Comment [JF18]: delete 

- [ Comment [JF19]: delete 

- { Comment [JF20]: delete 

~ ( Comment [JF21]: delete 

[ Comment[JF22]: delete 

/ ( Comment [JF23]: delete 

· ( Comment[JF24]: delete. 



into cash. The use of any form of performance 
guarantee other than cash held in escrow shall be 
subject to the approval of the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners. If the Subdivider furnishes cash or an 
equivalent instrument readily convertible into cash. the 
cash or equivalent instrument shall be deposited either 
with the County or in escrow with a financial institution 
designated as an official depository of the County. 

If cash or another instrument is deposited in escrow with 
a financial institution as provided above, then the 
Subdivider shall file with the Craven County Planning 
Board an agreement between the financial institution and 
himself/itself guaranteeing the following: 

a) That said escrow account shall be held in trust 
until released by the Craven County Planning 
Board and may not be used or pledged by the 
Subdivider in any other manner during the term of 
the escrow; and 

b) That in the case of a failure on the part of the 
Subdivider to complete said improvements, the 
financial institution shall, upon notification by itRel 
Craven County !Planning Boar~, . §lnci . LIJ:lOn 
submission by ~ Craven County flaf1ning ~_()arcJ l 
to the financial institution of an engineer's estimate 
of the amount needed to complete the 
improvements, immediately either pay to the 
County all. funds held in the escrow account ltRe 
funds estimated to oomplete the impro'lement, up 
to the full balanoe of the esorow aoooun(_Qr 
deliver to the County any other instruments fully 
endorsed or otherwise made payable in full to the 
County. 

b) Warranty of Improvement 

At the time of submission of the guarantee of improvements as 
required herein, the Subdivider shall provide to the Planning 
Board a written one year warranty, in manner and form 
satisfactory to the Planning Board and the County Attorney.~, 
covering all improvements installed or agreed to be installed by 
the Subdivider for a period of one year after the completion of 
the improvements.!, a ·.varranty shall run from the Subdivider td 
the County. If it is anticipated that the improvements, in sucn 
ease, this requirement of the subdivision ordinanoe may be 
satisfied by an agreement bePli'een the ·Subdivider and the 
County, in manner and form satisfaetory to the ·County 
Attorney, by 'llhieh the Subdivider warrants all such 

25 

( Comment [JF25]: delete 

· ( Comment [lf2G]: delete 

( Comment [JF27]: delete 

. ( Colllment[JF28]: delete 

· ( Comment [JF29]: delete 



improvements, and agrees to provide the ·.varranties at such 
time as the improvements are completed.L_u ___ _ __ __ 

c) Default 

Upon default, meaning failure on the part of the Subdivider to 
complete the required improvements in a timely manner as set 
forth ~polled ou~ in the agreement as required by Article Ill, 
Section 307.2, then the Subdivider surety, or the financial 
institution holding the surety bond. letter of credit. escrowed 
security or other form of equivalent security shall. ~ 
account shall,! if requested by the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners !PkinnTn-g--Boardj, pay all or any portion of the 
surety bond. letter of credit. escrowed security or other form of 
equivalent security pr escrow fun~ to th~ Cour1~y of Q_raVE?flQP_!Q__ 
the amount needed to complete the improvements based on an 
engineering estimate: Upon payment, the Craven County Board 
of. Commissioners planning Boar~! iQ__i!_~ cjiscr~Jig_QL I'"J'l_§Y s_Q_~flQ_ 
~~l.J.ch _Q_o_rtion _Qf_~§lid f~!!dS_.?S jt _ _<:ieellJ.~_Il-~g_ess§l_l')'jQ 
complete all or any portion of the required improvements. The 
County shall return to the Subdivider any funds not spent in 
completing the improvements. 

d) Release of !Guarantee Securit·~ Performance Guarantee 

The Craven County Planning Board shall return or release. as 
appropriate. the performance guarantee in a timely manner 
upon the acknowledgement by the County that the 
improvements for which the performance guarantee is being 
required are complete. ~ay release a portion of or all of the 
security once the improvements are oompleted.l Prior to the 
release of the performance guarantee, a licensed professional 
engineer must provide written confirmation of all improvements 
with his seal affixed thereto. 

§}. Renewal of Performance Guarantee 

If the improvements are not complete and the current 
performance guarantee is expiring. the Subdivider shall ensure 
that the performance guarantee is extended or that a new 
performance guarantee is issued in favor of Craven County for 
an additional period until such required improvements are 
complete. The form of performance guarantee utilized by the 
Subdivider in the event of an extension shall remain at the 
election of the Subdivider. 

Provided that the Subdivider has demonstrated reasonable. 
good faith progress toward completion of the required 
improvements that are the subject of the performance 

26 

[ Comment [JF30]: delete 

-- { Comment [JF31]: delete 

{ Comment [JF32]: delete 

- (Comment [JF33]: delete 

( Comment [JF34]: delete 

-· ( Comment [JF35]: delete 

( Comment [JF36]: delete 

( Comment [JF37]: delete 

{ Comment [JF38]: delete 



guarantee. Craven County may extend the period of time within 
which the Subdivider must complete the required improvements. 
Any extension of the performance guarantee necessary to 
complete required improvements shall require the Subdivider to 
provide an additional or renewed performance guarantee in the 
amount of one hundred twenty-five (125%) of the reasonably 
estimate cost of completion of the remaining incomplete 
improvements still outstanding at that time the extension is 
obtained. In the event that the County approves an extension. 
the Subdivider shall be required to obtain an additional written 
estimate from a licensed engineer for purposes of identifying the 
amount of the performance guarantee, which written estimate 
must have the engineer's seal affixed thereto. If the Subdivider 
fails to comply with the terms of the performance agreement 
required by Article Ill. Section 307.2 of the ordinance and the 
Subdivider has not demonstrated reasonable. good faith 
progress toward completion of the required improvements that 
are the subject of the performance guarantee. Craven County 
may call the performance guarantee and use said funds to 
complete the unfinished improvements. 

307.3 Submission Procedure 

The subdivider shall submit the final plat, so marked, to the 
Subdivision Administrator not less than 15 days prior to the 
Planning Board meeting at which it will be reviewed. The final plat 
will then be reviewed by the Subdivision Administrator and the 
Technical Review Committee (TRC) which is made up of agencies 
including, but not limited to: 

a) Division of Environmental Health, Craven County Health 
Department, and District Engineer, North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, and 

b) Superintendent of New Bern-Craven County Board of Education, 
and 

c) United States Army Corps of Engineers, and 
d) Field Consultant of the Office of Coastal Area Management, and 
e) United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation 

Service, and 
f) Craven County Building Inspector, and 
.9l Military Base Commander or designee as per NCGS 153A-323b, 

if applicable; and 
~D §y_c;h_()t_h_~r ~9(3_n_c;i(3_s ?11_9 __ ()ffic;iai§_Ci~ thepla_o_ningJ3oei!_d I'!!CiY __ 

deem necessary. 

Further, the final plat for the first stage of the subdivision shall be 
submitted not more than twelve (12) months after the date on which 
the preliminary plat was approved; otherwise, such preliminary 
approval shall be null and void, unless a written extension of this 

27 

/ ( Comment [JF39]: was g, now h 



limit is granted by the Craven County Planning Board at the request 
of the Developer on the twelfth (1 ih) month anniversary of the final 
approval. 

The final plat shall be prepared by a Registered Land Surveyor or 
Engineer currently licensed and registered in the State of North 
Carolina by the North Carolina State Board of Registration for 
Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors. The final plat shall 
conform to the provisions for plats, subdivisions, and mapping 
requirements set forth in N.C.G.S. 47-30 and the Manual for Land 
Surveying in North Carolina. 

Seven (7) copies of the final plat shall be submitted. Material and 
drawing medium for the original shall be in accordance with the 
Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in North Carolina, where 
applicable, and the requirements of the Craven County Register of 
Deeds. 

The final plat to be recorded shall be a reproducible plat either of 
original ink on polyester film (mylar), or a reproduced drawing, 
transparent and archival and have an outside margin of 0.5". The 
plat size shall be 18" x 24" (preferred), or 21" x 30". The scale shall 
not be less than one (1) inch equals one hundred (1 00) feet, unless 
otherwise approved by the Subdivision Administrator. Maps may be 
placed on more than one sheet with appropriate match lines. 

V\ filing fee of $50.00 or $10.00 per lot, ... ,hiohever is greater, is 
required following the approv-al of the final plat.! 
Administrative fees shall be assessed and paid in accordance with 
the most current fee schedule adopted by the Craven County Board 
of Commissioners. 

The final plat shall meet the specifications in Section 308. 

The following signed certificates shall appear on all final plats and 
shall be executed on the original and one (1) paper copy. 

a) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication 

I (We) hereby certify that I am (we are) the owner(s) of the property 
shown and described hereon, which is located in the subdivision 
jurisdiction of the County of Craven and that I (we) hereby adopt 
this plan of subdivision pursuant to Article Ill, Section 307, of the 
Craven County Subdivision Ordinance with my (our) free consent 
and establish minimum Building Setback Lines as noted: 

Date Owner(s) 

28 

( Comment [JF40]: delete 



b) Certificate of Survey and Accuracy 

In accordance with the Manual of Practice for Land Surveying in 
North Carolina: 

On the face of each map prepared for recordation there shall 
appear a certificate acknowledged before an officer authorized to 
take acknowledgements and executed by the person making the 
survey or map including deeds and any recorded data shown 
thereon. The certificate shall include a statement or error of closure 
calculated by latitudes and departures. Any lines on the map which 
were not actually surveyed must be clearly indicated on the map 
and a statement included in the certificate revealing the source of 
information. 

The certificate shall take the following general form: 

State of North Carolina, County 
I 0Ne), , certify that this map was 
(drawn by me) (drawn under my supervision) from (an actual 
survey made by me) (an actual survey made under my supervision) 
(deed description recorded in Book_, Page_, etc.) (Other); that 
the ratio of precision as calculated by latitudes and departures is 
1 : (that the boundaries not surveyed are shown as broken 
lines plotted from information found in Book_, Page_); that this 
map was prepared in accordance with G.S. 47-30, as amended. 

Witness my hand and seal this_ day of ___ A.D., 20_ 

Registered Land Surveyor 
Official Seal 

Registration Number 

e) K;ertifioate of 1\pproval from Environmental Health! __ 
c) Environmental Health Certificate 

Unless specifically remarked in the NOTES section of this plat, the 
Craven County Health Department, based on the information 
submitted with the application, has performed a site evaluation on 
each lot located within this subdivision. This certificate is based on 
conditions and State regulations existing on the date the 
Improvement Permit were issued and shall remain in effect as long 
as the Improvement permits are valid. Following expiration of 
Improvement Permits. the Craven County Division of Environmental 

29 

( Comment [JF41]: delete 



Health may require additional Improvements, if necessary, in 
accordance with current site conditions and regulations. This 
certification maybe overridden by State and/or Federal Statues and 
authority. jcopies of the site evaluations and .Improvement Permits 
for the sewage collection treatment and disposal systems planned 
to serve each·lot are mtailable for revie1N in the offioe of the Di'Jision 
of · En·1ironmental Flealth.l Prior to purchasing ANY property, 
purchasers are advised to verify the continuing validity of the 
Improvement Permit for the lot to be purchased. 

Director Date 
Division of Environmental Health 
Craven County Health Department 

~his oertifioationis based on oonditions and Sta~ regulations 
O*isting .on the date of this sertifioation and shall remain in effeot.for 
five (6) calendar years from the date of the certification~ Follov.ting 
O*piration of the. five (6) .year certification,. the·. Craven . County 
Division ·.of ... F;nvironmental Health ... reserves •. the.· right . to . require 
additional improvements for theseJots if found necessary v:hen the 
impro'v<ementpermit is requested. Prov-ided.this certification may be 
overridden by State and.tor Federal Statutes and authority.!_ 

d) Certificate of Approval by the Planning Board 

The Craven County Planning Board hereby approves the final plat 
for the subdivision. 

Date 

Chairman, Planning Board 

e) Disclaimer of Wetland Determination 

Approval of this Subdivision does not address the issue of the 
existence or non-existence of wetlands within the subdivision. The 
enforcement of wetlands regulations under Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act and Section 1 0 of the Rivers and Harbors Act is 
within the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 
Inquiries concerning wetlands matters should be addressed to that 
agency. 

f) Air Installation Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) Disclosure 

30 

( Comment[JF42]: delete 

- ( Comment [JF43]: delete 



If all or part of a subdivision is determined to lie within an area of 
Craven County that is regulated by the Craven County Marine 
Corps Air Station Zoning Ordinance, a disclosure statement shall 
appear on the plat in accordance with the aforementioned 
ordinance. 

g) Certificate of Approval by the Board of County 
Commissioners 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the 
final plat for the subdivision. 

Date 

Chairman, Craven County 
Board of Commissioners 

g) Certificate of Registration by Register of Deeds 

Craven County, N()rth Carolina 
n-he foregoing eertif.ioate of · ·. · .· ·· · , a· Notary Publie 
of . ·. County, ~Jorth Carolina, is eertified to be oorreetl 

Filed for registration on the_ day of , 20_, 
at __ (A.M./P.M.) and recorded in Plat Cabinet __ , Slide __ . 

Register of Deeds 

i) Certificate of Local Coastal Area Management Officer 

This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina 
Coastal Management Act of 197 4 and is not located within any 
Area of Environmental Concern. 

Local Permit Officer 

This subdivision conforms to the standards of the North Carolina 
Coastal Area Management Act of 197 4 and a portion( s) or all of the 
subdivision located within any Area of Environmental Concern is 
duly noted at the appropriate location on this plat. 

Local Permit Officer 

31 

( Comment [Jf44]: delete 



j) Department of Transportation 

The following certificate shall be signed by the District Highway 
Engineer upon review and approval of subdivision plat to ensure 
that minimum design standards are met: 

Division of Highways 

Proposed Public Subdivision Road Minimum Design Standards 
Certification 

Approved ________ _ 
District Engineer 

Date __________ _ 

k) Certificate of Approval of Water Supply System 

If the subdivision is proposed to be served by Craven County water, 
the following certificate shall be affixed to the map. 

I certify that this water supply system installed or proposed for 
installation in this subdivision fully meets the requirements of the 
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources, 
Division of Environmental Health Public Water Supply Section and 
is hereby approved as shown. 

Water Superintendent Date 

I) Soil Statement 

The following note shall be added to subdivision plats if deemed 
necessary by the Subdivision Administrator: 

Due to soil characteristics, specially engineered foundations may 
be required. 

m) Airport Disclosure statement 

Residents should be aware that the close proximity to Craven 
Regional Airport creates increased noise levels as well as certain 
height restrictions associated with the overflight of arriving and 
departing aircraft. Residents and potential buyers should consult 
with airport officials to determine the required height restrictions 
applicable for their particular area. 

32 



The Craven County Planning Board shall review the final plat at or 
before its next regularly scheduled meeting which follows at least 
fifteen (15) days after the Subdivision Administrator receives the final plat 
and shall recommend approval, conditional approval with modifications to 
bring the plat into compliance, or disapproval of the final plat with reasons 
within ten (1 0) working days of its first consideration of the plat. 

During its review of the final plat, the Craven County Planning Board may 
appoint an engineer or surveyor to confirm the accuracy of the final plat (if 
agreed to by the Craven County Board of Commissioners). If substantial 
errors are found, the costs shall be charged to the Subdivider and the plat 
shall not be recommended for approval until such errors have been 
corrected. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends approval of the final 
plat, it shall transmit all copies of the plat and its recommendations to the 
Craven County Board of Commissioners through the Subdivision 
Administrator. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends conditional approval of 
the final plat with modifications to bring the plat into compliance, it shall 
retain one (1) print of the plat for its minutes and return its written 
recommendations to the Subdivider. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends disapproval of the final 
plat, it shall instruct the Subdivider concerning resubmission of a revised 
plat and the Subdivider may make such changes as will bring the plat into 
compliance with the provisions of this ordinance and resubmit same for 
reconsideration by the Craven County Planning Board. 

Failure of the Craven County Planning Board to make a written 
recommendation if not approved within ten (1 0) working days after its first 
review shall constitute grounds for the Subdivider to apply to the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners for approval or disapproval. 

If the Craven County Planning Board recommends approval of the final 
plat, the Craven County Board of Commissioners shall review and 
approve or disapprove the final plat within thirty (30) working days after 
the plat and recommendations of the Craven County Planning Board have 
been received by the Subdivision Administrator. 

If the final plat is disapproved by the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners, the reasons for such disapproval shall be stated in the 
minutes of the Board, specifying the provisions of this ordinance with 
which the final plat does not comply. If the final plat is disapproved, the 
Subdivider may make such changes as will bring the final plat into 
compliance and resubmit same for reconsideration by the Craven County 
Planning Board and the Craven County Board of Commissioners. 

33 



If the final plat is approved by the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners, the original tracing and one (1) print of the plat shall be 
retained by the Subdivider. 

The Subdivider shall file the approved final plat with the Register of Deeds 
of Craven County within ninety (90) days of the approval of the Craven 
County Board of Commissioners; otherwise, such approval shall be null 
and void. 

Section 308. Information to be Contained in or Depicted on Preliminary and 
Final Plats 

The preliminary and final plats shall depict or contain the information indicated in 
the following table. An x indicates that the information is required. 

Information 
Title Block Containing 

Name of the Subdivision 
Name of Owner 
Location (including township, 
county and state) 
Date or dates survey was conducted 
and plat prepared 
A scale of drawing in feet per inch 
listed in words or figures 
A bar graph 
Name, address, registration number 
and seal of the Registered Land 
Surveyor 

The name of the Subdivider 

A sketch vicinity map showing the 
relationship between the proposed 
subdivision and surrounding area 

Corporate limits, township boundaries, 
county lines if on the subdivision tract 

The registration numbers and seals of 
the professional engineers 

Date of plat preparation 

North arrow and orientation 

The boundaries of the tract or portion 
thereof to be subdivided, distinctly 
and accurately represented with all 
bearings and distances shown 

34 

Preliminary Final 
Plat Plat 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 

X X 



The location of existing boundary X X 

lines of adjoining lands 

The names of owners of adjoining X 

properties 

The names of any adjoining subdivision X X 

of record or proposed and under review 

Minimum Building Setback Lines X X 

The zoning classifications of the tract X X 

to be subdivided and adjoining properties 

Existing property lines on the tract to X X 

be subdivided 

Existing buildings or other structures, X X 

water courses, railroads, bridges, 
culverts, storm drains, both on the 
land to be subdivided and land 
immediately adjoining 

Lot line, lot and block numbers, and X 

approximate dimensions with lots being 
marked, identified or flagged showing 
the rough approximate lot line location 

Lot lines, lot and block numbers, fully X 

dimensioned by lengths and bearings 

Marshes, swamps, ponds or lakes, streams X X 

or streambeds and any other natural 
features affecting the site 

The exact location of the flood hazard X 

boundary area, floodway and floodway 
fringe areas from the community's Flood 
Hazard Boundary maps or other Federal 
Emergency Management Agencies maps or 
from accurate topographical elevations 
based on geodetic survey data. Or, at 
the discretion of the owner, benchmark 
elevations at a minimum of 800ft. 
apart and referenced to either United 
States Geological survey or 1988 North 
American Vertical Datum. 

A note on the map, if applicable, that X 

all or part of this subdivision 
lies within a Special flood hazard 

35 



area as shown on the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps for Craven County. 

The following data concerning Streets: 
Proposed streets x 
Existing and platted dedicated Streets x 
and rights-of-way on adjoining 
properties and within the proposed 
subdivision 

Rights-of-way, location and dimensions x 
Pavement widths x 
Design engineering data for all x 
corners and curves 
Typical street cross sections x 
Street names x 
Street sign locations according to x 
standards of the County and State 
Type of Street Dedication; all streets x 
must be designated either "public" or 
"private." Where public streets are 
involved, the Subdivider must submit 
the subdivision map typical cross 
section to the N.C. Department of 
Transportation District Highway Office 
for review: A complete site layout, 
including any future expansion 
anticipated; horizontal alignment 
indicating general curve data on site 
layout plan; vertical alignment 
indicated by percent grade, PI station 
and vertical curve length on site plan 
layout; the District Engineer may 
require the plotting of the ground 
profile and grade line for roads where 
special conditions or problems exist; 
typical section indicating the pavement 
design and width and the slopes, widths 
and details for either the curb and 
gutter or the shoulder and ditch 
proposed; drainage facilities and 
drainage areas. Please keep in mind 
that the review time needed 
by the District Highway Engineer is 
approximately three (3) weeks. 
Where streets are dedicated to the 
public, but not accepted into the 
State system, a statement explaining 
the status of the street in accordance 

36 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 



with Section 405.2 of this ordinance. 
If any street is proposed to inter- X 

sect with a state maintained road 
the Subdivider must receive driveway 
approval as required by the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation, 
Division of Highways' manual on 
Driveway Regulations. 

The location and dimensions of all the 
following: 

Utility and other easements X X 

Any parks and recreation areas with X 

specific type indicated 
Any school sites X 

Areas to be dedicated or reserved X X 

for public use 
Areas to be used for purposes other X X 

than residential with the purpose of 
each stated 
The future ownership (dedication or X 

reservation for public use to 
governmental body, to duly constituted 
homeowners' association, or for 
tenants remaining in Subdivider's 
ownership) of recreation and open 
space lands 
Sufficient engineering data to deter- X X 

mine readily and reproduce on the 
ground every straight or curved line, 
street line, lot line, right-of-way 
line, easement line, and setback line, 
including dimensions, bearings, or 
deflection angles, radii, central 
angles, and tangent distance for the 
center line of curved property lines 
that are not the boundary line of 
curved streets. All dimensions shall 
be measured to the nearest one-tenth 
of a foot and all angles to the 
nearest minute. 

The plans for utility layouts including: 
All easements for drainage, electric, X X 

water, sewerage, telephone, cable TV, 
natural gas, roads, etc. 
Sanitary sewers X 

Storm sewers X 

Other drainage facilities, if any X 

37 



Water distribution lines X 

Natural gas lines X 

Telephone lines X 

Electric lines X 

Illustrations of connections to X 

existing systems, showing line 
sizes, the location of fire hydrants, 
blow-offs, manholes, force mains 
and gate valves 
A note on the plat that indicates if X X 

the proposed subdivision is to be 
served by central or individual 
water supply and central or 
individual sewage treatment systems 
Profiles based on Mean Sea Level X 

data for sanitary sewers and storm 
sewers, when required by the Subdivision 
Administrator 

Site calculations including: 
Acreage in total tract to be X X 

subdivided 
Acreage in parks and recreation X X 

areas and other nonresidential uses 
Total number of parcels created X X 

Acreage or square footage in each lot X X 

in the subdivision 
Linear feet of streets X 

The name and location of any property X X 

or buildings within the proposed sub-
division, or within any contiguous 
property that is located on the U.S. 
Department of Interior's National 
Register of Historic Places 
The accurate locations and descriptions X 

of all monuments, markers and control 
points 
Topographic map with contour intervals X 

as specified by the Subdivision 
Administrator at a scale 
of no less than 1 foot = 1 00 feet if 
required by the Subdivision 
Administrator 
Boundaries of applicable Areas of X X 

Environmental Concern in accordance 
with the State Guidelines for AECs 
(15 NCAC pursuant to the Coastal 
Area management Act of 1974) 
All certifications required in X 

38 



Article Ill, Section 304.2 
Any other information considered by 
either the Subdivider, Craven County 
Planning Board or Craven County 
Board of Commissioners to be 
pertinent to the review of the plat 
Any special conditions which would 
affect the construction of a 
structure on the proposed Lots. 
Any previous fill areas, low load 
bearing soils, aircraft noise, aircraft 
accident zones 
Any adjacent primary nursery areas as 
defined by the North Carolina Division 
of Marine Fisheries 

Article IV 

X 

X 

X 

Required Improvements, Dedication, Reservation, 
Minimum Standards of Design 

Section 401. General 

X 

X 

X 

Each subdivision shall contain the improvements specified in this article, which 
shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance and paid 
for by the Subdivider, unless other means of financing is specifically stated in this 
ordinance. Land shall be dedicated and reserved in each subdivision as specified 
in this article. Each subdivision shall adhere to the minimum standards of design 
established by this article. 

Section 402. Suitability of Land 

402.1 Land which has been determined by the Craven County Planning 
Board on the basis of engineering or other expert surveys to pose 
an ascertainable danger to life or property by reason of its 
unsuitability for the use proposed shall not be platted for that 
purpose, unless and until the Subdivider has taken the necessary 
measures to correct said conditions and to eliminate said dangers. 

402.2 Areas that have been used for disposal of solid waste shall not be 
subdivided unless tests by the Craven County Health Department, 
a structural engineer and a soils expert determine that the land is 
suitable for the purpose proposed. 

402.3 All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to 
minimize flood damage and shall have public utilities and facilities 
such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and 
constructed to minimize flood damage. 

39 



Section 403. Name Duplication 

The name of the subdivision and the streets located therein shall not duplicate 
nor closely approximate the name of an existing subdivision or street within 
Craven County or any municipality located within Craven County. The Subdivider 
shall receive Street name approval from the County Planning Department in 
accordance with Craven County's Road Naming and Addressing Ordinance. 

Section 404. Subdivision Design 

404.1 Blocks 

a) The lengths, widths, and shapes of blocks shall be determined 
with due regard to: provisions of adequate building sites suitable 
to the special needs of the type of use contemplated; zoning 
requirements; needs for vehicular and pedestrian circulation; 
control and safety of street traffic; limitations and opportunities 
of topography; and convenient access to water areas. 

b) Block lengths shall not be less than 300 feet or more than 1500 
feet unless otherwise waived by the Planning Board. 

c) Blocks shall have sufficient width to allow two (2) tiers of lots of 
minimum depth except where single tier lots are required to 
separate residential development from through vehicular traffic 
or another type of use, in nonresidential subdivisions, or where 
abutting a water area. 

d) Where deemed necessary by the Craven County Planning 
Board, a pedestrian crosswalk at least ten (1 0) feet in width may 
be required to provide convenient public access to a public area. 

404.2 Lots 

a) All lots in new subdivisions shall conform to any zoning 
requirements of the district in which the subdivision is located. 

b) Lots shall meet any applicable Craven County Health 
Department and State of North Carolina requirements. The 
following are the minimum lot sizes allowable: 

1. Residential lots in areas served by community water and 
sewage systems shall have a minimum of 8,000 square feet 
in area of usable land. When residential lots in areas served 
by such community water and sewage systems are 
proposed, the Developer shall comply and submit evidence 
of such compliance, with the General Statutes of North 
Carolina concerning public utilities and the rules and 

40 



Lot Size 
20,000 sq. ft. 
15,000 sq. ft. 

8, 000 sq. ft. 

regulations of the North Carolina Utilities Commission as 
they from time to time exist and are amended. 

2. Residential lots served by either a community water or sewer 
system shall contain 15,000 square feet of useable land. 

3. Residential lots lacking both community water and sewer 
systems shall contain a minimum of 20,000 square feet of 
usable land. 

c) All lots shall be developed in such a way that surface water is 
diverted into an adequate and approved drainage system, so as 
not to create hardship on any other property within the drainage 
system. 

d) The following minimum lot dimensions shall apply: 

Width 
Front Set at Front Set Side Rear 
Back Line Back Line Yard Yard 

30' 75' 10' 15' 
30' 75' 10' 15' 
25' 60' 8' 15' 

1. Corner lots shall have width sufficient to permit building 
setback of at least twenty (20) feet from side streets. 

2. All lots shall have at least thirty five (35) feet of front 
frontage. 

3. Double frontage lots shall be avoided wherever possible. 

4. All corner lots shall be assigned only one address. 

5. No residential or commercial structure, or any part thereof, 
shall encroach into the minimum building setbacks. 

404.3 Easements 

Easements shall be provided as follows: 

a) Utility Easements 

Easements for underground or above ground utilities shall be 
provided, where necessary, across lots or centered on rear or 
side lots lines and shall be at least ten (1 0) feet wide on each lot 
for water and sanitary sewer lines and as required by the 
companies involved, for telephone, gas and power lines. 

41 



b) Drainage Easements 

Where a subdivision is traversed by a stream or drainage way, 
or a drainage easement within the subdivision, an easement 
shall be provided conforming with the lines of such stream or 
proposed ditch. The easement shall be of sufficient width as will 
be adequate for water flows and run off and shall contain a 
twelve (12) foot wide maintenance access area along one side 
of the ditch. The balance of the easement shall be large enough 
for the top width of the proposed ditch, drainage way or stream. 
Any proposed ditches shall have a minimum bank slope of 3:1 
(slope ratio= 3 feet horizontally to one foot vertically). 

A drainage easement shall be provided from the property 
proposed for development to an adequate drainage outlet. 

404.4 Parking Requirements 

All subdivision lots shall provide for adequate off-street parking by 
having one (1) space per bedroom with a minimum of two (2) 
spaces. Each space must be a minimum of 10' x 18', and 
constructed of the same material as used for the driveway. 
Garages may be used for storage or other purposes and are not 
considered when calculating the total number of parking spaces. 

Section 405. Streets 

405.1 Type of Street Required 

Streets shall be laid out so as to intersect as nearly as possible at 
right angles. Street jogs with center line offsets of less than three 
hundred (300) feet shall be avoided. All measurements shall be 
from center line to center line of street rights-of-way. 

All subdivision lots shall abut on public streets, semi-improved 
private streets, or non-improved private streets. 

All public streets shall be built to the standards of this ordinance 
and all other applicable standards of the county and the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation. Public streets which are 
eligible for acceptance into the State Highway System shall be 
constructed to the standards in this ordinance, whichever is more 
strict in regard to each particular item, and shall be put on such 
system. Public streets which are not eligible to be put on the State 
Highway System because there are too few lots or residences 
shall, nevertheless, be dedicated to the public and shall be in 
accordance with the standards in this ordinance or the standards 
necessary to be put on the State Highway System, whichever is 
stricter in regard to each particular item, so as to be eligible to be 
put on the system at a later date. A written maintenance agreement 

42 



is required for a period of one (1) year from the date of approval or 
until it is placed on the State system, whichever occurs first. This 
agreement shall state the one (1) year period with provisions for 
maintenance of the streets. 

405.2 Subdivision Street Disclosure Statement 

All streets shown on the final plat shall be designated in 
accordance with G.S. 136-102.6 and the designation as public shall 
be conclusively presumed an offer of dedication to the public. 
Where streets are dedicated to the public but not accepted into the 
State system, before lots are sold, a statement explaining the 
status of the street shall be included with the final plat. 

405.3 Semi-Improved Private Streets 

Subdivision streets may be designated private streets for the 
purpose of providing access from a public street or highway to not 
more than eight (8) residential lots regardless of size, which lots 
shall not be further subdivided by said owner or subsequent owners 
until such time as the said private street is paved and such further 
subdivision complies with the terms of this ordinance. It is the intent 
and purpose of this section that at no time shall a private unpaved 
street serve more than eight (8) residential lots. Semi-improved 
private streets constructed under the provisions of this article shall 
conform to the specifications of the Division of Highways, North 
Carolina Department of Transportation minimum design standard 
without pavement. 

405.4 Non-Improved Private Streets 

Subdivision streets may be designated private streets for the 
purpose of providing access from a public street or highway to not 
more than four (4) residential lots regardless of size, which lots 
shall not be further subdivided by said owner or subsequent owners 
until such time as the said private street is stabilized or paved and 
such further subdivision complies with the terms of this ordinance. It 
is the intent and purpose of this section that at no time shall a 
private unpaved street serve more than four (4) residential lots. 
Non-Improved private streets constructed under the provisions of 
this article shall not be required to conform to the specifications of 
the Division of Highways, North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, except that a fifty (50) foot dedicated right-of-way 
shall be required. 

No private or public streets shall be allowed under the provisions of 
this article if it is proposed that such private or public street shall 
connect to a previously approved unpaved private street. 

43 



a) Disclosure 

Prior to entering any agreement or any conveyance with any 
prospective buyer, the Developer shall prepare and sign, and 
the buyer of the subject real estate shall receive and sign an 
acknowledgement of receipt of a separate instrument know as 
the Craven County Subdivision Streets Disclosure Statement 
which, shall be made a part of the recorded deed of conveyance 
or recorded simultaneously with the recording of the deed of 
conveyance. Said statement shall be in substantially the 
following form, which shall be deemed sufficient for purposes of 
this section: 

Craven County 
Subdivision Street Disclosure Statement 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 136-1 02.6(f), (Name of Developer), as the 
Developer and seller of lot _ in the subdivision known as 
(Name of Subdivision), Craven County, North Carolina, makes 
the following disclosures pertaining to the status and 
maintenance of (Name of Private Street): 

(1) (Name of Private Street) is designated a private street. 

(2) After the initial installation and construction of (Name of 
Private Street) by (Name of Developer), the responsibility of 
the maintenance of (Name of Private Street) shall be upon 
the owners of the lots within the subdivision. In the event of 
failure of the lot owners to maintain said street, there is no 
responsibility on the part of either the State of North 
Carolina or Craven County as to such maintenance. The 
street will not be constructed to minimum standards, 
sufficient to allow their inclusion on the State Highway 
System for maintenance. 

(3) (Name of Developer) will not construct said road to meet the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation Subdivision 
Road Minimum Construction Standards, and as such, 
(Name of Private Street) will not meet the standards 
sufficient to allow its inclusion in the State Highway System 
for maintenance. 

Receipt of this disclosure is by the Developer and Buyer 
acknowledge the_ day of , 20_ 

Developer Buyer 

44 



b) The Developer shall include in the Disclosure Statement an 
explanation of the consequences and responsibility as to 
maintenance of the private street, and shall fully and accurately 
disclose the party and parties upon whom responsibility for 
construction and maintenance of such street or streets shall 
rest. 

c) The Disclosure Statement shall further disclose that the street 
or streets will not be constructed to minimum standards, 
sufficient to allow their inclusion on the State Highway System 
for maintenance. However, there must be a fifty (50) foot right
of-way on all private roads. 

d) The Disclosure Statement shall contain a duplicate original 
which shall be given to the buyer. Written acknowledgement or 
receipt of the disclosure statement by the buyer shall be 
conclusive proof of the delivery thereof. 

All subdivision streets shall meet the following requirements: 

a) Cui-de-sacs shall be provided at the end of all public and semi
improved roads if dead-ending, unless the road is looped. All 
cui-de-sacs must have a minimum radius of fifty (50) feet, and 
the outside edge of the pavement or stabilized road must be a 
minimum of fifteen (15) feet from the right-of-way. 

b) All subdivision roads or streets within Craven County, whether 
public or private, and which the terminus thereof does not abut a 
state maintained street or highway, shall be connected by a 
connecting street to a state maintained road or highway, which 
connecting road shall conform to the specifications of the 
Division of Highways, North Carolina Department of 
Transportation for Subdivision Streets; provided, however, that 
pavement of such connecting road or street shall not be 
required in the event that such road or street connects with 
subdivision streets or roads designated as private, as herein 
provided, and disclosure that said road shall not be paved is 
made in accordance with provisions of this ordinance. 

405.5 Access to Adjacent Properties 

Where in the opinion of the Craven County Planning Board, it is 
necessary to provide for street access to an adjoining property, 
proposed streets shall be extended by dedication to the boundary 
of such property and a temporary turnaround provided. 

45 



405.6 Nonresidential Streets 

The Subdivider of a nonresidential subdivision shall provide streets 
in accordance with F-4 or with the latest standard of the North 
Carolina Roads, Minimum Construction Standards, July 1, 1979 ; 
and the standards in this ordinance, whichever are more strict in 
regard to each particular item. 

405.7 Design Standards 

The design of all public streets and roads within the jurisdiction of 
this ordinance shall be in accordance with the accepted policies of 
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of 
Highways. The N.C. Department of Transportation, Division of 
Highways' Subdivision Roads Minimum Construction Standards, 
July 1, 1979, and as revised April 22, 1982, shall apply. 

a) Right-of-way Widths 

Right-of-way widths shall not be less than those adopted by the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation and shall apply 
except in those cases where right-of-way requirements have 
been specifically set out in the thoroughfare plan. 

b) Cui-de-sacs 

Permanent dead end streets should not exceed five hundred (500) 
feet in length unless necessitated by topography or property 
accessibility, and in no case shall be permitted to be over nine 
(900) feet, unless otherwise approved by the Planning Board. 
Measurements shall be from the point where the center line of the 
dead end street intersects with the center of a through street to the 
center of the turnaround of the cul-de-sac. Where one cul-de-sac 
intersects with another cul-de-sac, the end of each cul-de-sac shall 
be no more than 500 to 900 feet from a through street, measured 
as stated above. The distance from the edge of pavement to right
of-way line shall not be less than the distance from the edge of 
pavement to right-of-way line of the street approaching the 
turnaround. Cui-de-sacs should not be used to avoid connection 
with an existing street or to avoid the extension of an important 
street, unless exception is granted by the Craven County Planning 
Board. 

c) Alleys 

1) Alleys shall be required to serve lots used for commercial 
and industrial purposes except that this requirement may be 
waived where other definite and assured provision is made 

46 



for service access. Alleys shall not be provided in residential 
subdivisions unless necessitated by unusual circumstances. 

2) The width of an alley shall be at least twenty (20) feet. 

3) Dead end alleys shall be avoided where possible, but if 
unavoidable, shall be provided with adequate turnaround 
facilities at the dead end as may be approved by the Craven 
County Planning Board. 

4) Sharp changes in alignment and grade shall be avoided. 

405.8 Major Thoroughfare Access Design Requirements 

Any subdivision containing fifteen (15) or more lots and located 
adjacent to or having ingress to and egress from the following 
highways shall comply with design standards 405.8 (a) and (b): 

United States Highway 17 North and South of New Bern 
extraterritorial jurisdiction; 

United States Highway 70 East of New Bern extraterritorial 
jurisdiction; 

North Carolina Highway 55 East of New Bern extraterritorial 
jurisdiction; 

North Carolina Highway 43 North of Vanceboro 
extraterritorial jurisdiction; 

North Carolina Highway 101 East of Havelock extraterritorial 
jurisdiction to North Carolina Highway 306. 

a) Prior to submission of the preliminary plat, the Developer, a 
representative of the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, and a representative of the County Planning 
Department shall review conceptual plans for access to the 
proposed subdivision. Based on consultation with the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation, the County may require 
acceleration, deceleration, or turn lanes for any street 
intersecting with a major thoroughfare. All such improvements 
shall be shown on both the preliminary and final plats. 

b) No subdivision shall have any lot fronting on a major 
thoroughfare. 

405.9 Other Requirements 

a) Street Names 

Proposed streets which are obviously in alignment with existing 
streets shall be given the same name. In assigning new names, 

47 



duplication of existing names shall be avoided an in no case 
shall the proposed name be phonetically similar to existing 
names in the county irrespective of the use of a suffix such as 
street, road, drive, place, court, etc. Street names shall be 
assigned by the County Planning Department in accordance 
with Craven County's Road Naming and Addressing Ordinance. 

b) Street Name Signs 

The Subdivider shall be required to provide and erect street 
name signs at all intersections within the subdivision. The sign 
must be of the same type currently erected unless otherwise 
approved by the Planning Board and must be erected in 
compliance with State and County standards, whichever are 
more stringent. All street names shall be indicated on the final 
plat. 

c) Permits for Connection to State Roads 

An approved driveway permit is required for connection to any 
existing state system road. This permit is required prior to any 
construction on the street or road. The application is available at 
the office of the nearest district engineer of the Division of 
Highways. 

d) Offsets to Utility Poles and Utility Ground Terminals 

Poles for overhead utilities and utility ground terminals shall be 
set no greater than one (1) foot inside the road right-of-way. 

e) Wheelchair Ramps 

In accordance with Chapter 136, Article 2A, Section 136-44.14, 
all street curbs in North Carolina being constructed or 
reconstructed for maintenance procedures, traffic operations, 
repairs, connection of utilities, or altered for any reason shall 
provide wheelchair ramps for physically handicapped at all 
intersections where both curb and gutter and sidewalks are 
provided and at other major points of pedestrian flow. 

Section 406. Utilities 

406.1 Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems 

All lots in residential subdivisions not connected to municipal or 
county water and/or sanitary sewer systems must have a suitable 
source of water supply and sanitary sewage disposal, which 
complies with the regulations of the State of North Carolina or 
Craven County regulations, as applicable: 

48 



a) No surface water shall be channeled or directed into a sanitary 
sewer. 

b) Where feasible, the Subdivider shall connect to an existing 
storm drainage system. 

c) Where an existing storm drainage system cannot feasibly be 
extended to the subdivision, a surface drainage system shall be 
designed to protect the proposed development from water 
damage. 

d) The proposed surface drainage design system shall meet all of 
the applicable rules and regulations of the North Carolina soil 
conservation authorities. 

e) Streambanks and channels downstream from any land 
disturbing activity shall be protected from increased degradation 
or accelerated bank erosion caused by increased velocity of 
runoff from the land disturbing activity in accordance with the 
North Carolina Sedimentation Pollution Control Act, 
G.S. 143-34.12, Chapter 113A, Article 4 and the North Carolina 
Administrative Code, Title 15, Chapter 4. 

f) All water valves, water meters and manholes shall be located 
outside the paved roadway. 

406.2 Individual Septic 

a) The Subdivider shall submit an Improvement Permit issued by 
the Craven County Division of Environmental Health for each lot 
created. Along with the Improvement Permit. a note must be 
included on the final plat identifying the type of system proposed 
for each lot. 

b) Any off-site drainfield and repair area for individual septic 
systems shall be shown on the preliminary plan. Where 
individual off-site systems are proposed within major 
subdivisions, the following standards shall apply. 

1. Supply lines, access roads and permanent markers shall 
be installed as part of the infrastructure improvements for 
the subdivision. The clearing and grading of the off-site 
system areas shall be installed as part of the infrastructure 
improvements for the subdivision. These improvements 
shall be included in the performance guarantee when not 
complete at the time of final plat approval in accordance 
with Article Ill. Section 307.2 of this ordinance. 

49 



2. The location of septic systems and access easements 
shall be designed such that damage to existing septic 
systems is avoided. These locations and easements shall 
be included on the preliminary plan and final plan. Supply 
lines shall be parallel to and within fifteen (15) feet of road 
rights-of-ways unless such a placement is not possible 
because of a physical obstruction. including, but not 
limited to. a stream. culvert, or existing structure. When 
an off-site drainfield and its corresponding repair area are 
proposed to be located on separate parcels/areas. the 
supply lines to the repair area and to the initial drainfield 
shall be installed as part of the infrastructure of the 
subdivision. Stub out portions of the supply line not 
immediately used after approval of the off-site septic area 
shall be placed inside a meter box or valve box flush with 
the final grade of the lot to protect the supply line from 
damage and depicted on as-builts. 

3. Unless access to the off-site initial or repair area is directly 
adjacent to a right-of-way. a suitable equipment access 
easement of twenty (20) feet to the off-site area(s) shall 
be provided along with an adequate repair staging area 
for equipment and materials (this is to be included in the 
preliminary plan design; the easements shall also be 
shown on the final plat). The Technical Review 
Committee (TRC) may recommend an access easement 
having a width of less than twenty (20) feet when it can be 
determined that a narrower easement will be adequate 
based on the system type. location and/or other factors. 
The access easement shall be a hard surfaced all weather 
road (e.g. gravel. asphalt, concrete etc.) along the entire 
length of the easement to a width of at least ten (1 0) feet 
centered on the centerline of the access easement. 

4. The corners of each drainfield and repair area of each off
site septic system shall be marked with a metallic type 
rebar cap with a minimum diameter of 1.5" Cinch) with a 
set iron rebar. Rebar must be a minimum diameter of%" 
(inch) and no greater that a maximum diameter of 
5/S"Cinch). and the rebar shall be no shorter that 24" 
(inches) in length. When installed the rebar cap must be 
flush with the finished grade with the iron rebar set below 
grade 1 "-2" (inches) 

5. Adequate provisions for the upkeep and maintenance of 
off-site septic systems shall be identified by recorded 
restrictive covenants. recorded home owners association 
covenants. recorded maintenance agreements. or other 

50 



recorded means approved by the Subdivision 
Administrator that ensure off-site septic systems are 
maintained. The instrument providing for the maintenance 
of the off-site septic systems shall be recorded referencing 
the map book and page of the subdivision. 

6. Irregular lots having a septic drainfield and/or repair area 
connected to the main buildable portion of the lot via a 
narrow and/or convoluted section of the parcel are 
prohibited. 

4().6.2 406.3 Special Sewage Systems 

If applicable to the lot, it is a requirement to give disclosure to 
prospective owners by the seller of the lot that a special sewage 
system will be required to allow usage of this property. The 
disclosure shall be signed by the owner, the prospective buyer of 
the lot, and recorded with the deed in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds of Craven County. 

Section 407. Buffering, Recreation and Open Space Requirements 

407.1 Purpose 

Buffers, or screens, are required to protect any subdivision 
comprised of residential use from commercial, industrial, office, or 
institutional use, which does not have a buffer. The principal use of 
the buffer is to provide spatial and visual separation between these 
uses. In addition, the buffer will provide absorption and/or 
deflection of excessive noise. This regulation benefits both the 
developer and the adjoining property owners by insuring solid 
separation, and protects the value of all properties involved. 

407.2 Specifications 

Buffers, or screens, shall be in the form of natural plantings, walls, 
fences, or open space. Where sufficient room exists to place a 
screen consisting of natural plantings or maintain an existing 
screen of natural planting, such natural plantings shall be used as 
the required form of screening. Otherwise, screening in the form of 
a wall or fence may be used. Where existing natural screening will 
be used the Subdivision Administrator shall determine whether the 
existing planting meets the requirements of this section. In 
incidents where buffers are found not to meet the requirements of 
this section, additional plantings shall be required by the 

51 



Subdivision Administrator. The area of the buffer shall be in 
addition to the lot area required by this Ordinance. The buffer shall 
become part of the lot on which it is located, or in the case of 
commonly-owned property, shall be deeded to the Homeowner's 
Association. 

a) Natural Plantings. Where natural plantings are used, a buffer 
of at least twenty (20) feet in width shall be planted. This buffer 
shall be free of all encroachments by structures, parking areas, 
or other impervious surfaces. All natural planting buffers shall 
be opaque to a height of at least six (6) feet tall at maturity in 2 
to 3 years. The minimum amounts and type of buffer materials 
to be planted per one-hundred (1 00) feet shall be as follows: 

1. A minimum of four (4) large canopy trees shall be in place. 
Of these canopy trees at least two (2) shall be of evergreen 
nature. The average canopy spread shall be a minimum of 
twenty (20) feet in width at maturity. 

2. A minimum of three (3) understory trees shall be in place. 
The average canopy spread shall be a minimum of ten (1 0) 
feet in width at maturity. 

3. A minimum of twenty (20) shrubs shall be in place. These 
shrubs shall all be of evergreen nature, and at maturity be 
three (3) feet wide and six (6) feet tall. 

b) Walls or Fencing. If a wall or fence is used for an approved 
buffer it shall be a blind barrier located in a buffer with a 
minimum width of twenty (20) feet. Said wall or fence shall not 
permit the passage of light from one side to another, and shall 
have the ability to dampen noise. Any wall shall be composed 
of brick, stone, or other decorative masonry material. Any 
fence shall be wooden plank or basket weave, and under no 
circumstances will chain link fencing be considered as a buffer. 
Also, certain vinyl fencing may be used and must be approved 
by Subdivision Administrator prior to start of construction. In 
addition to the construction of a wall or fence, shrubbery shall 
be required facing the residential side of buffer. This shrubbery 
shall be figured at a formula of twenty (20) plants per one 
hundred (1 00) feet (or fraction thereof). All walls or fencing 
shall be a minimum height of six (6) feet tall. 

c) Open space. As an alternative, the developer may choose to 
reserve an area fifty (50) feet in width as a buffer rather than 
option a) or b) of this section. 

All natural planting buffers, or screens, shall be opaque to a height 
of six (6) feet, where there is no visual contact between uses. Also, 

52 



these buffers shall have enough density to minimize the admittance 
of light and shall have the ability to reduce noise. Any wall or fence 
shall not be constructed to permit the passing of light between 
uses, and also help in the reduction of noise. The Craven County 
Planning Department shall provide to any developer a list of 
recommended species for the use of natural planting buffers, or 
screens, at the request of the developer. 

407.3 Construction and Maintenance 

A buffer must be installed or constructed prior to the final approval 
of subdivision plat. Once erected, a buffer shall be properly 
maintained at all times. The construction of a buffer shall be the 
responsibility of the developer. The maintenance of the buffer shall 
be the responsibility of the developer, property owner, or Property 
Owners Association (Home Owners Association), and shall be 
clearly stated on approved final plat in writing in the form of a note. 

The approved note is as follows: 

The maintenance of the buffer and/or screen located in this 
subdivision per Craven County's Subdivision Ordinance, Article 
IV, Section 407 shall be the responsibility of (developer, 
Homeowners Association, Property-owners Association, or 
individual property owners) and must be maintained at all times 
in accordance with the aforementioned ordinance. 

407.4 Guarantees 

Required buffers are considered improvements and shall abide by 
regulations stipulated in Article Ill, Section 307.2 of this ordinance. 
If the Subdivision Administrator grants approval for deferment of 
improvements, the required buffer must be completed by no later 
than six (6) months following the date of final approval. The 
Subdivision Administrator shall give approval for deferment upon 
receipt of a landscaping guarantee. Said guarantee shall be in 
accordance with Article Ill, Section 307.2 of this ordinance. Along 
with the guarantee the developer shall obtain a landscaping plan 
and cost estimate (official bid) from a landscaping firm. The 
guarantee shall be in the amount of the cost estimate, multiplied by 
1.25. This shall be in accordance with Article Ill, Section 307.2 of 
this ordinance. 

Upon default Craven County reserves the right to use said 
guarantees for the completion of buffer per Article Ill, Section 
307.2c of this ordinance. 

53 



Section 408. Other Requirements 

408.1 Placement of Monuments 

Unless otherwise specified by this ordinance, the Manual of 
Practice for Land Surveying as adopted by the N.C. State Board of 
Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, under 
the provisions of Title 21 of the North Carolina Administrative Code, 
Chapter 56 (21 NCAC 56), shall apply when conducting surveys 
and placement of monuments, control corners, markers, and 
property corner ties; to determine the location, design, and material 
of monuments, markers, control corners, and property corner ties; 
and to determine other standards and procedures governing the 
practice of land surveying for subdivisions. 

408.2 Construction Procedures 

No construction or installation of improvements shall commence in 
a proposed subdivision until the preliminary plat has been 
approved, and all plans and specifications have been approved by 
the appropriate Craven County and State of North Carolina 
authorities. No building, zoning or other permits shall be issued for 
erection of a structure on any lot not of record at the time of 
adoption of this ordinance. The Subdivider, prior to commencing 
any work within the subdivision, shall make arrangements with the 
administrator of this ordinance to provide for adequate inspection. 
The Planning Director having jurisdiction or their representatives 
shall inspect and approve all completed work prior to release of the 
sureties. 

408.3 Oversized Improvements 

The County of Craven may require installation of certain oversized 
utilities or the extension of utilities to adjacent property when it is in 
the interest of future Development. If the County requires the 
installation of improvements in excess of the standards required in 
this ordinance, including all standards adopted by reference, the 
County shall pay the cost differential between the improvement 
required and the standards in this ordinance. 

Article V 
Group, Cluster, Planned Unit Development 

The standards and requirements of this ordinance may be modified by the 
Planning Board in the case of a plan and program for a group, cluster, or planned 
unit development, which in the judgement of the Planning Board, provides 
adequate public spaces and improvements for circulation, recreation, light, air, 

54 



and service needs of the tract when fully developed and populated, and also 
provide such covenants, or other legal instruments, as will assure conformity to 
and achievement of the development plan. The maximum allowable density shall 
meet the requirements in Section 501. 

Section 501. Density Requirements 

Density increases greater than those permitted in the Subdivision Regulations 
will be permitted only when a community or public sanitary disposal is provided. 
Any such increase will be allowed only with the approval of the Craven County 
Health Department and they must meet the following requirements: 

A. Detached Single Family Dwellings 

Density (dwelling units per acre calculated from the minimum required lot 
size) may be increased if the character of the development warrants such 
increases, provided that in no case shall the density increase be more 
than thirty-three percent (33%) in excess of the density which would be 
achieved under the standard subdivision regulations. The area remaining 
from the reduced lot size shall be utilized for open space and recreational 
purposes. 

B. Apartments and Town Houses 

The number of units per acre shall be based on the following formula: 

1,500 sq. ft. of land for each 1 BR unit 
1,900 sq. ft. of land for each 2 BR unit 
2,300 sq. ft. of land for each 3 BR unit 
2,700 sq. ft. of land for each 4 BR unit 

The maximum project area covered by such dwellings shall not exceed 
forty percent (40%) of the total project area. 

C. Parking Space Reguirements 

Each detached single family dwelling, apartment, or townhouse shall have 
two (2) 1 0' x 18' parking spaces. 

Article VI. 
Storm Water Management Requirements 

Section 601. Storm Water Management Requirements 

In addition to all other requirements of this ordinance, subdivisions located 
adjacent to waters identified as primary nursery areas by the North Carolina 
Division of Marine Fisheries or tributaries leading to such waters shall be 
designed to accomplish the following: 

55 



a) A permanent conservation zone of seventy five (75) feet shall be 
established in which all land disturbing activities will be prohibited, 
except for shoreline stabilization activities allowed under CAMA 
permitting requirements. 

b) All structures shall maintain a minimum setback of one hundred (1 00) 
feet from the mean low water line. 

c) All parking areas shall be located as far away as possible from water, 
wetland, and shoreline areas adjacent to the subdivision. 

d) Only strip paving will be allowed. Curb and gutter shall be prohibited. 

e) Channeling storm water runoff directly into water bodies shall be 
prohibited. Storm water runoff shall be routed through swales and 
other systems designed to increase time of concentration, decrease 
velocity, increase infiltration, allow suspended solids to settle, and 
remove pollutants. 

Article VII. 
Shoreline Public Access Requirements 

The purpose of this Article is to set forth certain regulations pertaining to land 
development within the County, which regulations shall be in addition to all other 
applicable building, subdivision, and other regulations established by any County 
Article. This Article shall apply to, and be enforced in, all areas of the County, 
and no person shall develop land anywhere in the County except in conformity 
with this Article and other applicable regulations of the County. 

Section 701. Purpose 

This Article is enacted to insure that future land Development within the County 
provides for public access to shoreline areas. 

Section 702. Requirements 

As a condition of development in all subdivisions adjacent to a shoreline and 
having two hundred (200) or more lots, the Developer shall dedicate land, at the 
option of the County, for public access at the time and according to the standards 
and formula in this section. 

Section 703. General Standard, Formula 

It is hereby found and determined that the public interest, convenience, health, 
welfare and safety require that public access to the shoreline areas be provided 
in each subdivision having two hundred (200) or more lots and being located 
adjacent to a shoreline. 

56 



Section 704. Determination of Land 

The County shall determine whether to require Public Accessway Dedication 
after consideration of the following: 

a) Topography, geology, access and location of land in the development 
available for dedication; 

b) Location relative to residential population concentration; 

c) Size and shape of the development and land available for dedication; 

d) The feasibility of dedication; 

e) Availability and proximity of previously acquired Public Accessways; 
and 

f) Consistency with the Craven County Land Use Plan. 

Section 705. Credit for Private Accessway 

Where private accessways are provided in a proposed development and such 
space is to be privately owned and maintained by the future residents of the 
development, credit may be given against the requirement of Public Accessway 
Dedication. The County must find it in the public interest to do so and that all of 
the following standards are met: 

a) The private ownership and maintenance of the accessway is 
adequately provided for by recorded written agreement, conveyance or 
restrictions; 

b) The perpetual use of the private accessway shall be restricted for 
accessway purposes by recorded covenant, which runs with the land in 
favor of the future owners of property and which cannot be deleted or 
eliminated without the consent of the County or its successor; 

c) The proposed private accessway is reasonably adaptable for use for 
public and accessway purposes, taking into consideration such factors 
as size, shape, topography, geology, access and location; 

d) F aGilities proposed for the private accessway are in substantial 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance; and 

e) The accessway for which credit is given meets accessway needs of all 
existing and future residents of the area. 

Section 706. Procedure 

In the case of a subdivision for which a plat is required to be recorded, as a 
condition or preliminary plat approval, the Developer shall agree in writing to 
dedicate public access, at the option of the County, according to the standards 

57 



and formula in this section. A recommendation from the Planning Board shall be 
forwarded to the County Board of Commissioners. 

At the time of approval of the preliminary subdivision plat, the County shall 
determine the Public Accessway to be dedicated. 

At the time of filing of the final subdivision plat, the developer shall dedicate the 
Public Accessway. 

Section 707. Public Accessway Character and Development 

707.1 Where a Public Accessway is required, it shall be at least fifty (50) 
feet wide 

The run length of the Public Accessway shall be as long as 
necessary to run from the public intertidal zone to the nearest 
improved public street right-of-way. 

The location of the Public Accessway shall be at the discretion of 
the County with consideration of the following: 

a) The impact of the layout of the proposed development; 

b) The length necessary to accomplish the purpose of this 
ordinance; 

c) The preservation of unique or valuable natural or historic 
features; and 

d) The need for access at regular intervals for public safety 
purposes. 

707.2 Where a Public Accessway is required, it shall be developed as 
follows: 

a) Access aisle between the nearest improved right-of-way and the 
shoreline. 

b) Directional signs indicating public beach/sound access. 

c) Other reasonable improvements as determined appropriate and 
in the public interest by the Board of Commissioners. 

Article VIII 
Lot Numbering Procedures 

Section 801. "Street Names and Addresses" 

The Planning Department will approve or disapprove with recommendations 
proposed street names and issue addresses prior to the plat's approval in 
accordance with Craven County's Road Naming and Addressing Ordinance. 

58 



Article IX 
Definitions 

Section 901. "Subdivision" Defined 

For the purpose of this ordinance, "subdivision" means all divisions of a tract or 
parcel of land into two or more lots, building sites, or other divisions for the 
purpose of sale or building development (whether immediate or future) and shall 
include all divisions of land involving the dedication of a new street or a change in 
existing streets; but the following shall not be included within this definition nor be 
subject to any regulations enacted pursuant to this ordinance: 

a) The combination or recombination of portions of previously subdivided 
and recorded lots where the total number of lots is not increased and 
the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards as shown in this 
ordinance; 

b) The division of land into parcels greater than ten (1 0) acres where no 
street right-of-way dedication is involved; 

c) The public acquisition by purchase of strips of land for the widening or 
opening of streets; 

d) The division of a tract in single ownership whose entire area is no 
greater than two (2) acres into not more than three (3) lots, where no 
street right-of-way dedication in involved and where the resultant lots 
are equal to or exceed the standards as shown in this ordinance. 

Section 902. Other Definitions 

For the purpose of this ordinance, certain words or terms used herein shall be 
defined as follows: 

"Block" A piece of land bounded on all sides by streets or other transportation routes 
such as railroad lines, or by physical barriers such as water bodies or public open 
space, and not traversed by a through street. 

"Buffer" An area reserved to provide spatial and visual separation between residential 
use and commercial, office, institutional or industrial use as described in section 407 of 
this ordinance. 

"Building Setback Line" A line parallel to the front property line in front of which no 
structure shall be erected. Setbacks shall be figured from the right-of-way line. 

"Clearing" The removal of trees and brush from the land but shall not include the 
ordinary mowing of grass. 

"County" Craven County, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina. 

59 



"Dedication" A gift, by the owner, or a right to use of land for a specified purpose or 
purposes. Because a transfer of property rights is entailed, dedication must be made by 
written instrument, and is completed with an acceptance. 

"Developer" Any person undertaking any development as defined in this Ordinance. 

"Development" Any subdivision, whether or not the recording of a plat is required; any 
horizontal condominium; and any multiple dwelling unit residential building, including, 
but not limited to apartments, condominiums, hotels, motels, special planned 
developments, planned unit development, and group development projects. 
Development shall also mean any commercial or industrial building or structure. The 
term shall, when appropriate to the context, include the act of establishing or creating 
any of the foregoing or the result of such activity. 

"Easement" A grant by the property owners of a strip of land for a specified purpose 
and use by the public, a corporation, or persons. 

"Impervious Surface" A surface which has been compacted or covered with a layer of 
material so that it is highly resistant to infiltration by water. It includes semi-impervious 
surfaces such as compacted clay, as well as most conventionally surfaced streets, 
roofs, sidewalks, parking lots, and other similar structures. 

"Lot" A portion of a subdivision, or any other parcel of land, intended as a unit of 
transfer of ownership or for development or both. 

"Lot of Record" A lot which is part of a subdivision, a plat of which has been recorded 
in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven County prior to the adoption of this 
ordinance, or a lot described by metes and bounds, the description of which has been 
so recorded prior to the adoption of this ordinance. 

"Lot Types" (see below) 

1. "Lot. Corner" A lot located at the intersection of two or more streets. A lot 
abutting on a curved street or streets shall be considered a corner lot if straight 
lines drawn from the foremost points of the side lot lines to the foremost point of 
the lot meet at an interior angle of less than one hundred thirty five (135) 
degrees. 

2. "Lot, Through" or a "Double Frontage Lot" A lot other than a corner lot with 
frontage on more than one street. Through lots abutting two streets may be 
referred to as double frontage lots. 

3. "Lot, !Reserved! Reversed Frontage" ~-t> _ _L()!__()_I'l __ \fl/blc_~-t~~Jr()_ll!?_9~--L~_(l_t rigt{ Comment[JF4S]: delete 

angles or approximately right angles (interior angles less than one hundred thirty 
five (135) degrees) to the general pattern in the area. A reversed frontage lot 
may also be a corner lot, an interior lot, or a through lot. 

60 



4. "Lot, Single-Tier" A lot which backs upon a limited access highway, a railroad, 
a physical barrier, or another type of land use and to which access from the rear 
is usually prohibited. 

"Major Thoroughfare" Any street designated on the Craven County Thoroughfare 
Plan as a minor thoroughfare, major thoroughfare, or freeway. 

"Major Subdivision" A subdivision which does not qualify as a minor subdivision. 

"Minor Subdivision" A Subdivision along an existing state maintained or non
improved private street where no guarantees for improvements are involved. 

"Official Maps or Plans" Any maps or plans officially adopted by the Craven County 
Planning Board. 

"Open Space" An area (land and/or water) generally lacking in man-made structures 
and reserved for enjoyment in its unaltered state. 

"Planning Department" The Craven County Planning Department. 

"Plat" A map or plan of a parcel of land which is to be, or has been subdivided. 

"Private Driveway" A roadway serving two (2) or fewer lots, building sites or other 
division of land and not intended to be public ingress or egress. 

"Private Street" An undedicated private right-of-way which affords access to abutting 
properties and requires a subdivision streets disclosure statement in accordance with 
G.S. 136-102.6. 

"Public Accessway" A piece of land transferred to public use for access to shoreline 
areas. Public Accessways may be dedicated by right-of-way, perpetual easement or fee 
simple title transfer. 

"Public Sewage Disposal System" A system serving two (2) or more dwelling units 
and approved by the Craven County Health Department and the North Carolina 
Department of Natural Resources and Community Development. 

"Public Water Distribution System" A system serving two (2) or more dwelling units 
and approved by the Craven County Health Department and/or the North Carolina 
Department of Human Resources. 

"Recreation Area or Park" An area of land or combination of land and water 
resources that is developed for active and/or passive recreation pursuits with various 
man-made features that accommodate such activities. 

"Reservation" A Reservation of land which does not involve any transfer or property 
rights. It simply constitutes an obligation to keep property free from development for a 
stated period of time. 

"Site Plan" A plan or a parcel of property showing proposed improvements, utilities, 
natural features, and other items as may be required to clearly indicate and define the 
intended development of a piece of property. All site plans must be prepared by an 
engineer, architect or surveyor licensed to practice in the State of North Carolina. 

61 



"Street" A dedicated and accepted public right-of-way for vehicular traffic or a private 
road as permitted by this Ordinance. The following classifications shall apply: 

1. "Street, Local Residential" Cul-de-sac, loop streets less than 2,500 feet in length, 
or streets less than one mile in length that do not connect thoroughfares, or serve 
major traffic generators, and do not collect traffic from more than 100 dwelling units. 

2. "Street, Cul-de-sac" A short street having but one end open to traffic and the other 
end being permanently terminated and a vehicular turnaround provided. 

3. "Street, Frontage Road" A local street or road that is parallel to a full or partial 
access controlled facility and functions to provide access to adjacent land. 

4. "Street. Alley" A strip of land, owned publicly or privately, set aside primarily for 
vehicular service access to the back or side of properties otherwise abutting on a 
street. 

"Subdivider" Any person, firm, or corporation who subdivides or develops any land 
deemed to be a subdivision as herein defined. 

"Subdivision. Apartments" Attached multi-family units in a row or in a group project. 

"Subdivision. Group Development" A group of two or more principal structures built 
on a single lot, tract, or parcel of land and designed for occupancy by separate families, 
business firms, or other enterprises. (Sometimes referred to as a planned unit 
development or cluster development.) 

"Subdivision, Town House" Single family dwellings attached where units may be for 
sale or rent. 

"Understory trees" An underlying layer of vegetation, especially the plants that grow 
beneath a tree's canopy. 

"Uses, Commercial" Any use of property, subdivision, or site for business or 
commerce, excluding industrial use. 

"Use, Industrial" Any use of property engaged in the production or manufacture of 
goods, products, or materials. 

"Wetlands" Those areas where: (1) the soil is ordinarily saturated with water; or (2) the 
dominant plant community is one or more of those species designated by the Coastal 
Resources Commission and/or the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers as identifying 
wetlands or the transitional zone of wetlands. 

Section 903. Word Interpretation 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, certain words shall be interpreted as follows: 
a) Words used in the present tense include the future tense. 
b) Words used in the singular number include the plural and words used in the plural 
number include the singular unless the natural construction of the wording indicates 
otherwise. 

62 



c) The word "person" includes a firm, association, corporation, trust, and company as 
well as an individual. 
d) The word "used for" shall include the meaning "designed for." 
e) The word "structure" shall include the word "building." 
f) The word "lot" shall include the words "plot," "parcel," or "tract." 
g) The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

Article X 
Effective Date 

This ordinance is hereby adopted by the Craven County Board of Commissioners this 
the 7 day of February , 2005 

By: 

Chairman, Craven County Board of Commissioners 
Attested: 

Clerk to the Board 

Amendment Date 

Sections 901 and 901.1 is hereby amended by the Craven County Board of 
Commissioners this the __ 4_ day of April 2005 

By: 

Chairman, Craven County Board of Commissioners 

Attested: 

Clerk to the Board 

63 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 05/02/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME 

ALEXANDRE I JEAN CLAUDE JR 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

ALEXANDRE, JEAN CLAUDE JR 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

ALEXANDRE, JEAN-CLAUDE 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

ANDERSON, CHARLES EDWARD JR 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRINSON, JAMES A 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2015 

CONN, JEFFREY ALLEN 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

HAYES, LILLIE M HRS 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2009 

HAYES, LILLIE M HRS 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2013 

HAYES, THELMA LILLIE 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2006 

ACCT#/TICKET# 

0103677 2014-0093322 

0103677 2015-0000619 

0045044 2015-0000620 

0060226 2015-0001157 

0831150 2015-0006613 

0102088 2015-0011496 

0097666 2015-0025861 

0097666 2015-0025862 

0025163 2015-0025877 

LONGTIN, DALE 0068331 2015-0035237 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

NAD DEVELOPMENT LLC 0091280 2015-0041941 
DWELLING DID NOT EXIST 1-1-2015 

RAINES, MARVIN LEE JR 

DID NOT OWN 1/1/2015 

SUTLEY, ROBERT WAYNE 
RECYCLE CHARGED IN ERROR 

WOOD, EDWARD ANTHONY 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

0041859 2015-0047405 

0012201 2015-0055459 

0089746 2015-0064052 

PAGE 1 

AMOUNT 

116.11 

104.75 

119.73 

99.22 

16.75 

6.86 

112.59 

37.53 

37.53 

200.78 

596.79 

17.28 

37.53 

8.84 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 2 

CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 05/02/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

14 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 1,512.29 



TAX805P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
REFUNDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 05/02/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

NAD DEVELOPMENT LLC 0091280 2015-0041941 593.08 
DWELLING DID NOT EXIST 1-1-2015 

1 -REFUND(S) 593.08 



DOA-731 
Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

County: Craven 
County Funding Plan July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 

County Services Summary 

A B c D E F G H I 
Ser. Delivery Projected Projected Projected Projected 
!(Check One) Block Grant Funding Required Net USDA Total HCCBG Reimbursemen HCCBG Total 

Services Direct Purch. Access In-Home Other Total Local Match Service Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate Clients Units 

Transp. 49353 49353 5483.67 54836.67 54837 6376 8.60 35 6376 

Craven Cty Sen Gong X 32285 32285 3587.22 35872.22 4181 40053.22 5575 6.~36VZ 69 5653. 

HOM X 157164 157164 17462.67 174626.67 28576 203202.67 38101 4.58445 160 38275 

Senior Companion X 23186 23186 2576.22 25762.22 25762.22 5258 4.899700 12 5258 

Care Management X 55643 55643 6182.56 61825.56 61825.56 39 n/a 

LVII (DSS) X 109916 109916 12212.89 122128.89 122128.89 7966 15.33 50 7966 

LVIII (DSS) X 66129 66129 7347.67 73476.67 73476.67 4793 15.33 18 4793 

Havelock ConQ X 17119 17119 1902.11 19021.11 2812.5 21833.61 3750 5.0723 15 3750 

Total 104996 199231 206568 510795 56755 567550 35570 603119.50 71819 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 398 72071 
f 
i 
..t. 

Signature, Chairman, Board of Commissioners Date 



Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County~ North Carolina APR 11 ,l0'6 

Names of board, c rmittee, authority, etc., in which you are i 

~*1/16 ;/ : /lrs--t A)Ef 

rested. Please list in order of priority: 

~ Jrlv' A// If/ ~ 0 ,4-/Z i 

y · Yes No 

(Please indicate your pre 

Education 

l /vtiqsfovt;: CILEf£ J S&t-~~!2 t-71 d e 

Business and Civic Experience 

Areas of Expertise. Interest. Skills 

Sg-N f D 1<. ] {_p;J IV( i/7 /r;..-'/ !f:d:_ 1/ tl~ f1cf) ~I..J UrG ln.l4!./4pe.lrl /T.Jf
/1-AI'{ ffy VYL-~,J :a:~ ~e:f I c; N _s 

Why do you want to serve? 

Date: Ofk--t 'L .( / , eX Q I lp 
I 

Please be advised that this fonn is a public record, and must be made avail le to the public upon request. 
The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
more information on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e-mail (gbryan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252-637-0526. 

This form will remain active until one year after date received. 



RESOLUTION 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County has received an offer to purchase a parcel of property 

owned by it identified as Tax Parcel Number 1-044-050, and more particularly described in Deed 
Book 3322 at Page 817 in the Craven County Registry (hereinafter the "Real Property"), a copy 
of said offer is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 
property pursuant to the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statute §160A-269. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the initiation of the upset bid 
process for the Real Property by advertising notice of the offer to purchase in accordance with 
the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statue §160A-269. 

2. That the County Manager, Clerk and/or Attorney are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

ADOPTED THIS 2nd DAY OF MAY, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

9\\\SERVER04\LSSDOCS\00000035\00068864.000.DOCX 



NORTH. CAROLiNA 
OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

.CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRENDA ESPINOSA-BLANCO, as Buyer,. hereby offers to purchase and CRAVEN COUNTY~ as Seller, upon acceptanc~ of said 
offer, agrees to sell. and convey, all of that plot, piece or parcel of land described below (h~reafterreferred to as the '~Property"), upon 
the following terms and conditions: 

1. REAL PROPERTY: Located in Township 1, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as ~nd more particularly described as: 
Street Address: NC 43 Hwy, Craven County 
Subdivision Name: n/a 
tax ParcellD No,: 1 ~044-050 
Plat Reference: n/a 
Being all of that property more particularly described in Deed Book 3322, Page 817 in the Craven County Registry. 
2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $1,500.00 and shall be paid as follows; , 
(a) $500.00 EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by 0 cash 0 bank check YJ certified check 0 other: N/A to be held by 

Seller until the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until tllis contract is otherwise properly terminated. In 
the event this offer is not accepted, then all earnest monies shall be reftmded to Buyer. In tqe eve11t of breach of this contract by 
Seller, all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request. In the event ofbreach of this contract by Buyer, then 
all earnest monies shall be forfeited to Seller upon Seller's request, but such forfeiture shall not affect any other remedies 
available to Seller for such breach. 

(b) $1;000.00 BALANCE of the purchase price in cash or readily available funds at Closing. 
3. CONDITIONS: 
(a) This contract is not subject to Buyer obt~ining financing. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closipg as on the date of this offer, reasonable wear and tear 

excepted. 
(c) The Property is being sold subject to ail liens and encumbrances of record, if any. 
(d) Other than as provided herein, the Property is being conveyed "as is". 
(e) This contract is subject to the provisions of G.S. § 160A-269. Buyer ~cknowledges thai this contract is subject to certain notic.e 

provisions and the rights in others to submit upset bids in accordance therewith. 
(f) Title shall be delivered at Closing by QUITCLAIM DEED 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller makes no warranty or representation as to any pending or confiniled governmental special 
assessments for sidewalk, paving, water, sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, or pending or confmned owners' 
a~sociation special assessments. Buyer :shall take title subject to all pending }i~Sessments, If any. 
5. PAYMENT OF TAXES: Any Ad valorem taxes to which the Property is subject shall be paid in their entirety by Buyer. 
6,. EXPENSES: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any title search, title insurance, recording of the deed, its legal 
fees, and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure. the balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. Seller 
shail pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this agreement, and for any 
exCise tax (revenue stamps) required by law, 
7. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Not Applicable. 
8. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed, All parties agree to exeQute any and all 
documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer of title on or before thii:tv (30) days.after final approval is 
given by the Craven County Board of Commissioners pursuant to·G.S. §160A-269. 
The deed is to be made to: BRENDA ESPINOSA-BLANCO or assig11(s). 
CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION, 
9. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be de1ivered at Closing! 
10. PROPERTY INSPECTiON, APPRAISAL, INVESTIGATION: 
(a) This contract is not subject to inspection, appraisal or investigation, as the Property is being bought "as is". Seller makes no 
representation as to water, sewer, conditions, title, access; or fitness for any intended use. 
(~) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION, 
11. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEl\1NITY: Buyer and Buyer's agents and c;:ontractors shall not have the right to 
enter upon the Property for any purpose without ~civance \Vritten permission of the Seller. If such pennission is give!\ Buyer will 
indemnifY and hold Seller hartnless from all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, whi9h shall arise out of any contract, agreement, qr injmy 
to any person or property as a resuit of any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property. This indemnity 
shall survive this contract and any tennination hereof. 
12. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: (ITEMIZE ALL ADDENDA TO tHIS CONTRACT AND ATTACH 
HERETO.): None. 

Buyer Initials ·&B -----'- Seller Initials __ _ 

Page 1 of2 



13. RISK OF LOSS: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. 
14. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, but if assigned by agreement, then 
this contract shall be binding on the assignee and the assignee's heirs, successors or assigns (as the case may be)~ 
15. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, i.e., Buyer and Seller and their heirs, 
successors and assigns: As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter 
genders, as appropnate. 
16. SlJR.VlVAL: lfany provision herein contained wh1ch by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after 
the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remaiti binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 
performed. 
17. ENTIRE AGREEl\iENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no representatio!lS,.inducements 
or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all 
parties. 
18. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notice or communication to be given to a patty herein may be given to the party or to such. 
party's agent This offer shall become a binding contract (the "Effective Date") when signed by both B.uyer and Seller and such 
signing is communicated to the offering party. This contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together 
constitute one and the same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party, and the parties adopt the word "SEAL" 
beside their signatures below. 

BUYER: 

r6Mtod£v w MIX~\-- ~nC.O (SEAL) 

Name: BRENDA ESPINOSA-BLANCO 

Date: 4-/ ;ll {1 Lp 

Address: 1830 Wilmar Road 

Vanceboro. NC 28586 

Phone No.: 252-916-i455 

Buyer 1nitials &B 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000035\00068863 .000. DOCX 

SELLER 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: -----,----------,---~(SEAL) 
Its: 

Date: 

___ Seller Initials __ _ 

Page 2 of2 



~~~ 
I 

I ST~iTE EMPLOYEES' CREDIT UNION CASHIER 'S CHECK 
I '00:34 ~~ B=. G~-< ~'d 

I 
P.AY· 

cii~~1~oF CRAVEN COUNTY 

I 

I ~i.tt,f FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND 00 CENTS 
t .. 
l ;•\: I. 

f '-.11:'1, 

I ~~~-liTTER: BRENDA ESPINOSA-BLANCO 

I )\J.~f1MO: D·r>llos\t- (}f\; t- D'+tf-05D 
t •' I ~~~ 

! 
~. , ... ~, 
ST~,· n•  • •: • 

J ·~~)i).; 

029132 

DATE: April21, 2016 
6(,.. 7704/2531 

$********500.00 

-~ 

I 
I 

.:i z 
<:: 
0 
..!!! s 
el 

@I 

~ 
i 
!'! 
~ 
,f 
g; 
E 
~ I 

! 



Craven County Geographic Information System 
craven County does NOT warrant the .information shbwri ori this page <ihd should be used ONLY for tax as$essrnent purposes. 

This repott was treated by Craven County GlS reporting services on 8/7/2015 1:40:!)() PM. 

ParceiiD; 

Owner: 

Mailing Address: 

Property Address : 

Description· : 

Lot Description : 

1-044 -050 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

406 CRAVEN ST NEW BERN NC 28560 

NC 43 HWY 

ELLISON LD 

Assessed Acreage: 2.900 Calculated Acreage: 2.740 

Deed Reference : 3322-0817 Recorded Date : 1211 2014 

Recorded Survey: 

Estate Number : 

L~ncl Valu~ : $4 •. 350 Tax Exempt: Yes 

Improvement Value : $0 # of Improvements : 0 

Total Value : $4;350 

City Name.: Fire tax District : TOWNSHIP 1 

Drai·nage 0 istrict : Special District : 

Land use: VACANT -RESIDENTIAL TRACT 

Recent Sales Information 

SALE DATE Sellers Name Buyers Name 

12/11/2014 HOLMES, IRIS CRAVEN COUNTY 
LORRAINE JOHNSON 

2/26/1986 JOHNSON, HERBERT HOLMES, IRIS LORRAINE 
JOHNSON 

List of Improvements to Site 

No improvements listed for this parcel 

Sale Type 

STRAIGHT 
TRANSFER 

LAND SALE 

Sal~ Price 

$2,500 

$1,000 



Page 1 of3 

NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

Revenue Stamps: $5.00 
Par~el # t -044-050 

llllllmlllllllllmi~IIM~IIImiii~IIIIIIIIIDI~~II 
lmapv 10: 00000240S500 TvPe: CRP 
Recorded: 12/U/2014 at 09:46:56 flt 
Fee Amt: $31.00 Pllge 1 of 3 
P.ev$nve Tax: $5.00 
'WorkflowM 000012557B..;Q001 
Craven, NC 
Sherr! B. Richard ReRhter of Deedt 

61<3322 PG817 

COMMISSIONER'S DEED 

a.J.J... 
THIS COMMISSIONER'S DEED, made and executed this _J__ day of December. 

2014, by and between AARON D. ARNETTE, Commissioner, pursuant to a jud!:,rment of the 

District Court of the N.C. General C-ourt of Justice in Craven County) North Carolina in an action 

entitled "Cravet1 County. Plai11tiffv. Iris Lorraine Johnson Holmes1 e/ a/. (File No. 13 CVD 1320), 

Grantor. lo Craven County, whose mailing address is 406 Craven Street, New Bern, North Carolina 

28560, as Grantee, 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS. said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, being empowered ·and directed by a 

j4dgnient in the sa!d action, did, on the i 7\h day of July, 2014. after d.ue advertisement accon:Hng to 

law, and as directed by said judgmen1, expose the land hereinafter described to public sale at the 

door of the Craven County Courthouse, where and when Craven Cl;)unty became the last and 

highest bidder( s) for said land at the; public sale for the sum of$2,286.60; and 

WHEREAS, on the 17111 day of J 1,1ly~ 2014, Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, reporteg to the 

Court that Craven County was the last and highest bidder for said property in the amount of 

$2,286.60; andt 

WHEREAS, on the lih day of July, 2014, A~JrOJ1. D. Arn!;!tte, Commissioner, filed a Report 

of Sale indicating that Craven County was the last and highest bidder(s} for said property in .the 

amount of$2,286.60: and, 

Prepared By; / 
Sumrell, Sugg, Ca.rtnichaet, Hicks & Har(, P.A 

4.16 Pollock S(reet 
New Bern, NC 2R560 

Book: 3322 Page: 817 Seq: 1 



Page 2 of3 

111!1111111111111 
lmane ID! 000002408!101 Type: CRP 

. Pa~e 2 of 3 

BK3322 PG818 

WHEREAS, more than I 0 days elapsed since the original report of sale or most recent upset 

bid was tiled~ and 

WHEREAS, on or about September tO, 2014. Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, was 

ordered by judgment ofsaid Court to execute a deed in fee simple to Craven County; and 

NOW THEREFORE. in consideration of the premises, the said Aaron D. Arnette, 

Commissioner, as aforesaid, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to CraVen County all of 

that certain tract or parcel of land lying. situate and being in Number One ( 1) Township; Craven County. 

North Carolina, and more particularly described as follows: 

The property is commonly referred 'to by its tax parcel identification 
number which. is l~044wOSO. A description of the property is recorded 
in Book 11.08, Pl\ge 305 of the Cnwen County Registry. The propercy 
is more particularly described as: 

That certain lot, tract or parcel of land situate; lying and being in No. 
1 Township, Craven County, North Carolina being bounded on the 
n9rth by Irene Williams, .:m the east by the Turner land, on the south 
by Raymond Coward and on t.Jte west by N.C. Highway No. 43 and 
beginning at a stake on ~be cast ~ide of N.C. Highway No. 43 at Irene 
Williams' corner; thence with her line,. North 64 deg. 30 m1n. East, 
1370. fee.t to a stake; thence with the Turner line, South 77 deg. 30 
inin. East, ~~3 fe~~ to~ stake, Raymond Coward's corner; then~e with 
his line~ South 62 deg. f5 min. West 1337 feet to a stake in W.C. 
Jones' line; thence with said Jones~ line, North 24 dcg. 30 min. West, 
45 feet to a stake and South 65 deg. 45 ritiu. West, 210 feet to a stake 
on the east side.of N.C. Highway No. 43; thence with the side of N.C. 
Highway No. 43, North 23 deg. 45 min. West~ 147 feet to the 
beginning, containing 5.7 acres, more or less~ and being 2 shares of the 
Zula Coward land. 

2 

Book; 3322 Page: 817 Seq: 2 



Page 3 of3 

lllfiiiiiiiiiiiWJm~ 
Im&Re lO: 000002408502 Type: CRP 

PaQe 3 of 3 

BK3322 Pa819 

LESS AND EXCEPT pl'operty described in Deed Book 681, Page 9-1, 
iu the Craven County regista:·· 

This parcel is not the primary •·esidence of the grantor. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid tracts or parcels of land and all privileges and 

appurtenanc~ thereunto belongi11g to Craven County, the s~id Grantees; i11 fee simple forev~r, in \\S 

full and ample manner as said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, as aforesaid, is authorized and 

empowered to convey same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Aaron 0 Arnette, Commissioner, hath hereunto 

set his hat)d and sec.H the day and year first above writte . 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, J. Diana Ipock, a NoVll'Y Public of Surry County, North Carolina. do hereby certiiy that 
AarQn D. Arnette, Commissioner, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the 
due:! execution of the fbregQing instrument 

/1Ytl 
WITNESS my hand and notarial stamp or seal, this~ day of December, 2014. 

't 

6/24l2017 

Book: 3322 Page: 817 $eq:3 



I \ \ \\ \ \" \ ~ \ \ \ 

~
\
 

~\-
\ \ 



RESOLUTION 
1032 Cedar Street, New Bern (Tax Parcel Number 8-007-062) 

Lease to Preservation Management, Inc. 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County (the "County"), along with the City of New Bern, 

acquired an interest in that certain property more commonly referred to as 103 2 Cedar Street, 

New Bern, North Carolina, and further identified as Tax Parcel Number 8-007-062 (the "Real 

Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Preservation Management, Inc. ("PMI'') is the managing entity of t}le 

Craven Terrace Public Housing Complex, and desires to lease the Real Property through October 

31, 2016, for the purpose of establishing a community garden for the residents of Craven 

Terrace; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has determined that it will not need the Real 

Property during the term of the proposed lease agreement, and that it is authorized to enter into 

the lease for such terms and upon such conditions as the Board may determine, pursuant to North 

Carolina General Statute §160A-272. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

Section 1. That the County lease the Real Property to PMI pursuant to the terms of 

that certain Lease Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 2. That the Chairman, County Manager and/or Clerk be and they are hereby 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary to accomplish the purposes 

of this Resolution. 

ADOPTED TillS 2nd DAY OF MAY, 2016. 

GEORGE LINE~ Chainnan 
(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000035\00068987.000.DOCX 

Page 1 ofl 



NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into effective as of the 1st day of April 

2016, by and between the CITY OF NEW BERN, a North Carolina municipal corporation, and 

CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina (collectively, 

"Lessors") and PRESERVATION MANAGEMENT, INC. ("Lessee"), collectively referred to as 

the "Parties." 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, the Lessors own a parcel of real property located at 1032 Cedar 

Street in the City of New Bern, said parcel being further identified as Craven County Tax Parcel 

Number 8-007-062 ("Subject Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Lessee manages a pubic housing complex located in the City of New 

Bern known as "Craven Terrace"; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to use the Subject Property exclusively for the 

development of a community garden for the residents of Craven Terrace during the 2016 

growing season while renovations are being made on the campus of Craven Terrace; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessors have agreed that the Lessee may lease the Subject Property 

exclusively for the use of a community garden for the residents of Craven Terrace, subject to the 

terms and conditions established herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed upon the terms of this Lease and wish to reduce their 

agreement in writing. 

Page 1 of 6 



NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, said 

Lessors does hereby let and lease unto said Lessee, and said Lessee does hereby accept as tenant 

of said Lessors, the Subject Property. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said Subject Property, together with all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to it, the said Lessee, its successors and assigns, for the term 

and upon the conditions hereinafter set forth: 

1. This Lease shall begin as of April 1, 2016, and, unless sooner terminated as herein 

provided, shall exist and continue through October 31, 2016. 

2. During the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining the 

Subject Property in compliance with all local regulations so that the Lessors will have no 

obligation whatsoever with respect to the maintenance or upkeep of the Subject Property during 

the term of this Lease. 

3. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the Subject Property may only be used for 

the public purpose of creating a community garden for the benefit of the residents of Craven 

Terrace, and that produce grown on the Subject Property may only be sold for the purpose of 

establishing and funding a scholarship fund exclusively for the young residents of Craven 

Terrace. 

4. As rent for the Subject Property, the Lessee agrees to maintain the Subject 

Property, as hereinabove set forth, and to pay the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) during the term 

of this Lease, such payment to be made contemporaneously with the execution of this 

instrument. 

5. Lessee shall not assign this Lease. 

Page 2 of 6 



6. Lessee shall release, defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Lessors and 

their respective e1nployees, agents, representatives, and public officials from and against any and 

all claims, damages, losses, costs, responsibility or liability for injury or damage to person or 

property arising from or out of any occurrence in, upon, or at the Subject Property, or use by 

Lessee of the Subject Property, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Lessee, 

its agents, contractors, employees, servants or concessionaires, unless the same is caused by the 

gross negligence or willful misconduct of Lessors. 

7. It is expressly agreed that, if the Lessee shall neglect to do and perform any matter 

or thing herein agreed to be done and performed by it and shall remain in default thereof for a 

period of thirty (3 0) days after written notice from the Lessors calling attention to such default, 

the Lessors may declare this Lease terminated and cancelled and take possession of the Subject 

Property without prejudice to any other legal remedy it may have on account of such default. 

Said notice may be given to the person at such time in charge of the Subject Property or sent by 

certified mail to the Lessee at the following address: 

Michelle Falino, Regional Vice President 
Preservation Management, Inc. 
261 Gorham Road 
South Portland, ME 04106 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, Lessors have caused this instrument to be executed by the 

Mayor of the City ofNew Bern in its corporate name and by the Chairman of the Craven County 

Board of Commissioners on behalf of Craven County and its seals affixed and attested to by its 

Deputy City Clerk and Clerk, respectively, and Lessee has caused this instrument to be executed 

by its ___ President, all as of the day and year first above written; this Agreement being 

executed in triple originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties. 

Page 3 of 6 



CITY OF NEW BERN 

By: _____________ _ 

Mayor 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Deputy City Clerk 

CRA YEN COUNTY 

By: _____________ _ 

Chairman, Craven County Board of Commissioners 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Clerk, Craven County Board of Commissioners 

PRESERVATION MANAGEMENT, INC. 

By: _____________ _ 

President ------

(Corporate Seal) 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

Page 4 of 6 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
do hereby certify that on the day of April, 2016, before me personally appeared DANA 
E. OUTLAW, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that 
he is the Mayor and that BRENDA E. BLANCO is the Deputy City Clerk for the City of New 
Bern, the municipal corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that 
he knows the common seal of said municipal corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing 
instrument is said common seal; that the name of the municipal corporation was subscribed 
thereto by the said Mayor; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of 
Aldermen of said municipal corporation; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said 
municipal corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the ___ day of April, 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
do hereby certify that on the day of April, 2016, before me personally appeared 
GEORGES. LINER, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says 
that he is the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the. Clerk for the City of the Board of Commissioners for Craven 
County, the body politic and corporate described in and which executed the foregoing 
instrument; that he knows the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal 
affixed to the foregoing instrument is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and 
corporate was subscribed thereto by said Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by 
order of the Board of Commissioners of said body politic and corporate; and that the said 
instrument is the act and deed of said body politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the ___ day of April, 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

Page 5 of 6 



STATE OF -------------------

COUNTYOF ------

I, _______________________ , Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
do hereby certify that on the day of April, 2016, before me personally appeared 

and acknowledged that he/she is 
President of PRESERVATION MANAGE:rviENT, INC., a Maine Corporation, and that he/she, 
as President, being duly authorized to do so, voluntarily executed the foregoing instrument on 
behalf of said corporation for the purposes stated therein. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the ___ day of April, 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

Page 6 of 6 


	Agenda20160502
	Attachment #2
	Attachment #4
	Attachment #8.A
	Attachment #9.A
	Attachment #9.B



